RAJESH ). SHAH & ASSOCIATES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPCRT

To
The M.embers of Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
{Formerly known as “Ratnamani Health-are Private Limited”)

Repcert on the audit of the financial statements
Cpinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Pyt Ltd.) {“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as
at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss {including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of material accounting pohcnes and other exnlanatory information
(hereinaftar referred to as the “financial statements”).

I our opirian and to the best of our information and according to the explanations glven to us, th= aforesaid
tinarcial statements give the information required by the Cempanies Act, 2013 (the “Act”} in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accoun_tlng Standards prascribed under
cection 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
(“nu AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as vt March 31, 2024, its loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Bacsis for epinion

We cendusted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing (“SA”s) snecified under section 143
(10} of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the auditor's
recaoncibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are indepandent of the
Company in accordznce with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountzrts of Iadia
(“ICAl’) tegcther with the cthical requirements that are relevant to cur audit of the financial cta.zmants
under the provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled cur other ethic:
respansibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's code of ethics. We believe thzt the
audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 12
financial statements.

Other matter

The Comparative financial information of the company for the year ended March 31, 2023 and the transiticn
datz cpening date cpening balance sheet as at April 1, 2022 included in these financial statements, are bzsed
on tha previously issued financial sictements prepared in accordance with the Companies {Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2000 audited by us and our reports for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 4arch 31,
2022 dated August 31, 2023 and Sep:tember 23, 2022 respectively expressed an unmodified opinicn on those
financial statements, as acjusted fcr the differences in the acco : inciples adopted by the Company
on transition to the Ind AS, which have been audited by us.

Our opiniun is not modified in respect of these matter.
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Rajesh J. Shah & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures 1o Board’s
Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon. :

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

The Company's board of directors is responsible far the matters stated in section 134 (5} of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statement that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. '

The board of directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assuranceisa high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken-on the basis of these financial statements.
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Rajesh J. Shah & Associates

Chartered Accountants
independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 1o those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control,

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143{3}{i} of the Companies Act, 2013, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and eventsin
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit. ’ :

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such: unication.
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* Rajesh J. Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the Annexure “A"”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

7. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

{b)

{c)

(d}

(e}

(f)

(g}

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
taken on record by the board of directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 {2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B.” Qur report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i}  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements - Refer Note 39 to the financial statements;

(i)  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

(il  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company;

(ivi (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
advanced or loaned orifivestedieither from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sour;/: ds) by the company to or in any other

{lie ign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the

person{s) or enti
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Rajesh J. Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report {Continued)
Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

{v}

(i)

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
{(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b} The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
received by the company from any person{s) or entity(ies) including foreign
entities {“Funding Parties”) with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, Directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Basedonsuchaudit procedures that the auditor has considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has
caused them to believe that the representations‘under sub-clauseli) and (i)
contain any material misstatement.

During the year no dividend was declared or paid. Hence, compliance under Section
123 of the companies Act, 2013 is not applicable; and

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance
of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3{1) of the Companies {Accounts} Rules, 2014 is applicable from 1st
April 2023, reporting under Rule 11 {g) of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record
retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024,

For Rajesh J. Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 108407W

A

-

CA Rajesh J. Shah
Partner

Membership No.: 040268
UDIN: 24040268BKHJRHB386

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 27, 2024
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ANNEXURE “A” to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
of even date}

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books and
records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state
that: -

{i) {a) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work-in-
progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) Some of the Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work-in-progress and right-of-use assets
were physically verified during the year by the management in-accordance with a program
of verification, which in our opinion provides for physical verification of all the Property, Plant
and Equipment, capital work-in-progress and right-of-use assets at reasonable intervals
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its activities. According to the
information and explanations given to us no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other
than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are
duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the
name of the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property,
plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the
year.

(e} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending
against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i} (a) The inventories were physically verified by the management during the year at reasonable
intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management is appropriate having regard to size of the Company and the nature of its
operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventories
were noticed on such physical vgriﬁééﬁah--“cf_\i\nventories when compared with books of

accounts. VS




. Rajesh 1. Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report {Continued)
Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

(iil)

(b)

(a)

{b)

{c}

{d)

{e)

According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point of time of the year,
the Company has been sanctioned working capital facility excess of five corers rupee in
aggregate, from banks on the basis of security current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly
returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with the
unaudited books of account of the Company.

The Company is yet to submit the quarterly returns or statements comprising stock
statements, book debt statements and statements on ageing analysis of the debtors/other
receivables for the quarter ended 31st March 2024 with banks. -

The Company has given guarantees during the year and the outstanding balance of loans and
guarantees as at March 31, 2024 are given below:

Loans Guarantees
{Rin Millions) | {X in Millions}

A. | Aggregate amount granted / provided during the
year:

- Holding Company - -

- Subsidiaries - -

- Joint Ventures - -

- Others - 772.50
B. | Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in
respect of above cases*

- Holding Company# - 400.00
- Subsidiaries - -
- Joint Ventures - -
- Others 3.00 372.50

* The amounts reported are gross amounts including accrued interest (wherever applicable), without considering

provision made.
# The Company has provided the corporate guarantee to the Sencres Pharmaceuticals Limited before it become
the holding company of the Company w.e.f. 13" December 2023.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions of the loans given are,
prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company in case of loan given to M/s. Renosen
Pharmaceuticals Private Limited.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, Loan is repayable on
demand and payment of interest on periodic basis, which is regular.,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the repayment of principal and payment of
interest has been stipulated as in mentioned in (¢} above, hence the question of overdue
amounts does not arise.

According to the information ;md explanat‘pns given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of tlfe Cpmpany, th re i\S no loan given falling due during the year,
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. Rajesh J. Shah & Associates
Charterved Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report {Continued)
Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

{iv}

(v}

(vi)

(vii)

which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans given to settle the overdues of existing
loans given to the same party.

(i According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment, except as
mentioned in (¢} above.

The company has given loans and guarantees, provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 have been complied with to the extent applicable.

The Company has not accepted any depaosits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained
by the Company pursuant to the Companies {Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended
prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have
been made and maintained by the Company. We have, however, not made a detailed examination
of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete,

{a) The Company does not have any liability in respect of Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of excise
and Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues have
been subsumed into Goods and Services Tax (‘GST').

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including GST, Provident fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income-tax, Cess and other material statutory dues have generally been
regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of GST, Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs,
Cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.
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Rajesh ). Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report {Continued)
Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

(viii)

{ix)

{b)

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of GST,
Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of
Customs, Value added tax, Cess or other statutory dues which have not been deposited by
the Company on account of disputes, except for the following:

Period to Forum where
Nature of Amount which the . .
Name of Statute M dispute is
Dues (X in Millions) amount .
pending
relates
fncome Tax Act, | Income Tax 46.29 2018-15 Gujarat High
1961 Court
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 158.83 2021-22 CIT-A-11,
1961 Ahmedabad

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(a)

(b}

{c}

(d}

(e)

{f)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in the
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender
during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not been declared willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has taken a term loan during the
year and it is unutilized for the purpose for which term loan has taken.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds have been raised on short-term
basis and utilized for long term basis by the Company. Accordingly, clause 3{ix}{d) of the
Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries
as defined under the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, clause 3{ix)(e} of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, clause 3{ix){f)
of the Order is not applicable.
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- Rajesh J. Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report {Continued)
Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

{x)

{xi}

(i)

(xiii)

{xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

{a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3{x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, during the year, the Company has allotted
18,68,090 equity shares against conversion of Compulsory Convertible Debentures (‘CCD’)
(Series | & I1).

{a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined
in Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12)
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

(c) Asrepresented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year and up to the date of this report.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations
given to us, all the transactions with related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188
of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial
statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information
and explanations given to us, Internal audit under sec 138 of Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable
to the Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable, However, The Company
has in-house internal audit system.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

{a} The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3({xvi){a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b} The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3({xvi}{b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company {CIC} as defined in the regulations made by

the Reserve Bank of India. W'ainfg&}?ﬁa(m){c) of the Qrder is not applicable.
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| Rajesh ). Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

{xvii)

(aviii)

{xix)

{xx)

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the
Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3{xvi)(d) are not
applicable. :

The Company has incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial
year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii}
of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities failing
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to any project.
Accordingly, clauses 3{xx}{a} and 3(xx}{b) of the Order are not applicable.

For Rajesh J. Shah & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 108<_}7W

CA Rajesh J. Shah Y _\

Partner V& o \ \
Membership No.: 040268 (= \o
UDIN: 24040268BKHIRHE386 ".:'\ ,} JJ)
Place: Ahmedabad NHep //

Date: May 27, 2024
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RAJESH J. SHAH & ASSOCIATES

Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ section of our
report to the Members of Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited of even date)

Report on the internal financial controls over financial reporting under clause (i) of sub — section 3 of
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private
Limited {“the Company”} as at March 31, 2024, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls

The board of directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013,

Auditers’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”} issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those standards and
the guidance note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement in the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtam\d is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal Tnam:ial cohtf\ol system over f‘nanmal reporting.

.‘--‘_ = //
Head Off.: B-110-111, Gopal Palace, Nr. Shiromani Lomplex Nr. Nehrunagar BRTS, Satellite, Ahmedahad-380015
Phone: 079-2676 0537 / 2676 0637 = E-mail : rjshah_ca@yahoo.com + website : www.rjsacnline.in
Branch Off.: B-303, Vasudha Parnika, Nr. Laxmi Mata Mandir, Barer, Balewadi, Pune-411 045



» Rajesh J. Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (i) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (jii} provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management of override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial control system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Rajesh ). Shah & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 10840?7W

1 % ,/%\
Partner ’; \\a
Membership No.: 040268 W .' )]
UDIN: 24040268BKHIJRHE386 Wee\ /. //

NI A

Place: Ahmedabad N’
Date: May 27, 2024
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Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
{Formerly known as Ratnamani Heaftheare Private Limited)
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

% in Millions)

Particulars Notes As at As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 Aprit 2022
Assets
Non-gurrent assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 6 569.36 587.50 571.79
Capital Work-In-Progress 7 28.87 26.50 -
Right-Of-Use Assets 8 12.05 13.85 15.65
Intangible Assets g 12.78 12.68 0.15
Intangibfe Assets Under Developmeant 10 - 1.27 -
Financial Assets
Investments 11 0.ov 0.07 0.06
QOther Financial Assets 13 3.77 259 1.40
Deferred Tax Assets [net) 14 36.63 - -
Income Tax Assets (net) 14 535 7.60 917
Other Non-Current Assets 15 10,21 6.45 6.48
Total Non-Current Assets 685.09 658.51 604.70
Current Assets
Inventories 16 153.81 125.31 171.05
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables 17 362.65 234.23 249.16
Cash and Cash Equivalents 15 0.34 0.34 11.96
Bank Balances Other Than Cash and Cash Equivalents 16 1.58 1.58 502
Loans 12 3.00 16.62 -
Other Financial Assets 13 517 22,19 7.20
QOther Current Assets 15 114.59 84.47 86,41
Total Current Assets 641.14 484.74 530.80
Total Assets 1,326.23 1,143.25 1,135.50
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity Share Capital 20 37.45 18.77 18.77
Other Equity 21 £5.32 (12.57} 14.98
Total Equity 52.77 6.20 33.75
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 22 631.07 522.27 546,40
Lease Liabilities 8 12.96 13.24 14.28
Prowisions 23 580 6.06 7.82
Deferred Tax Liabilities {net} 14 - 371 11.38
Total Non-Current Liabilities 649.03 545.28 575.98
Current Liabilities
Financial Lizhilities
Borrowings 22 175.16 363.97 159.29
Leaze Liabilities 8 1.18 0.96 077
Tradle Payables 24
Bues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprizes 155.45 91.78 19597
Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 214.75 82.70 118.63
Other Financial Liabilities 25 24.29 22.04 12.79
Provisions 23 2.20 1.21 1.14
Other Current Liabilities 26 11,40 22.11 33.18
Total Current Liabilities 584.43 589177 521.77
Total Liabilities 1,233.46 1,137.05 1,101.75
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,326.23 1,143.25 1,135.50
Sea Accompanying Notes To The Financial Statements 1-51

In Terms Of Our Report Attached
For Rajesh J, Shah & Associates
Chortered Accountants

Firm's Registration NDQS:&D?W
L3

-~

Rajesh k.
Portner

Membership No. 40268
LN - 24040265BKHIRHE3S
Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 27 May 2024

For and Behalf of Board of Directors of
Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

{Farmerly known as

litendra 8. Sanghvi
Director
DIM 06271995

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 27 May 2024

tnamani Healtheare Private Limited)
CIN : U24230GI2005HTC047304

Swapnil J, Shah
Director

DIM 05259821



Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
{Formerty known as Ratnomani Healthcore Private Limited)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on 31 March 2024

{% in Millions)
f Year ended Year ended

Particulars Notes 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue From Qperations 27 1,042.57 1,164.33
Other Income 23 8.54 28.46
Total Income 1,051.11 1,192.79
Expenses

Cost of Materials Consumed 29 676.57 704.01

Purchases of Stock-In-Trade 29.08 80.64

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-In-Progress and Stock-in-Trade 30 [28.36) (21.45)

Employea Benefits Expense 31 173.29 135.82

Finance Costs 32 55.03 48.39

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 33 58.82 53.60

Other Experses 34 246,87 237.30
Total Expenses 1,211.30 1,238.31
Profit f {Lass) Befare Exceptional ltems and Tax {160.19) {45.52)
Exceptional Kems X - 10.00
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax {160.19) (35.52)
Tax Expenses 14
Current Tax - -
Deforred Tax Charge/ {Credit} (40,60} {7.75)
Total Tax Expenses {40.60) {7.75)
Profit / (Loss) for the year {119,59) (27.77)
Dther Comprehensive Income
Items That Will Mot Be Reclassified Subsequantly to Profit or Loss

Re-measurerment {Losses}/Gains on Defined Benefit Plans 0.93 0.30

Income Tax Relating to Above (0.26) [0.08)

0.67 0.22

Totai Comprehensive Income {118.52) [27.55}
Earnings Per Share [Nominal Value Per Equity Share of £ 10]

Basic {In ) 36 {48.24) {14.80)

Diluted {in %) (48.24) {14.80}
See Accompanying Notes To The Financial Statements 1-51

In Terms Of Our Report Attached
For Rajesh 1. Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firmn’s Registration NoA08407W

Partner
Membership No. 40268

UDIN : 240402688KHIRHE386
Place: Ahmedabad

Date; 27 May 2024

For and Behalf of Board of Directors of

Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
{Formerly known as Ratnomani Healthcare Private Limited)
CIM - U242306G)20058TC047394

lJitendra B, Sanghvi

Director

OIM 00271995

,3M

Swapnil J, Shah
Director

DN 05259821

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 27 May 2024



Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
{Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Privete Limited)
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year anded 31 March 2024

(A} Equity Share Capital
{% in Millions})

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year T 18,77 18.77
Changes during the year 18.68 -
Balance at the end of the year 3745 18.77

{B} Other Equity
{% in Millions)

Reserves and surplus

Particulars . . Securities Ccapital Reserve Total
Retained earnings .
_ premium _Fund

Balance as at 1 April 2023 {206.94} 187.57 6.80 {12,57}
Profit / {Lass} far the year {119.59) - - {119.59)
COther Comprehensive Income (net of tax) Q.67 - - 0.67
Equity Shares issued during the year - o 186.81 - 186.81
Balance as at 31 March 2024 {325.86)  374.38 6.80 55.32
Bafance as at 1 April 2022 {179.39) 187.57 6.80 14.98
Profit / (Loss) for the year {27.77) - - {27.77)
Cther Comprehensive Income {net of tax} 0.22 B - 0.22

Balance as at 31 March 2023 (206.94}

i 187.57 6.80 {12.57}

Nature and purpose of reserves :

{a) Retained earnings : Retained eamings are iho prefits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends,
ar other distributions paid to shareholders.

{b} Capital reserve : Capital reserve represents ofiects of Compromise and Arrangement scheme aapproved by National Company Law Tribunal
{“MCLT").

{c) Securities premium : Securities premiuni Lserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares, In case of equity settled share based

1 fair value on grant date and nominal value of share is accountad as securities premium. This

isins of the Act,

payment transactions, the difference bet..
reserve is utilised in acoardance with the o0 3

In Terms Qf Qur Report Atiéched For and Behalf o_fa)aTamoi‘ Directors of

For Rajesh ), Shah & Associates Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Chartered Accountants {Formerly known ad Rotnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
firm's Registration No:g)\BdO?W CIN : LU24230G1200§PTC047394

S S >
Rajesh 1, §hah Jitendra B. Sanghvi Swabpnil J. Shah
Partner Director Director
Memhership No, 40268 DIN 00271985 DIN 05259821

UDIN ; 24040268BKHIRHE3386
Place: Ahmedahad
Date: 27 May 2024

Plage: Ahmedabad
Date: 27 May 2024




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
{Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Statement of Cash Flows far the year ended on 31 March 2024

{% in Millions)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
A CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit / {Loss) Before Tax . {160.19) {35.52)
Adjustments for :
Depraciation and Amortisation Expense 58.82 53.60
Provision no Longer Required Written Back {0.01} {0.01)
Bad Debts / Advances / Sundry Balance Write off .55 -
Unrealised Foreign Exchange (Gain) {net) {2.85) {2.27)
{Gain) / Loss on sale / Discard / Write-off of Property, Plant & Equipment 0.40 {0.18})
Finance Costs 55.03 48.39
Interest Income {0.83) {0.87)
{49.08) 63.14
Adjustments for Changes In Working Capital ;
Trade Receivables and Other Assets {119.65) 4,28
Inventories {28.50) 45.74
Trade Payables, Liabilities and Provisions 154,29 {143.23})
CASH GENERATED FROM QPERATIONS {42.94) {30.07)
Direct Taxes Paid (net of refunds) 2.25 1.57
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES {40.69) {28.50})
B CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipments and Intangible Assets [Refer note (b)) {44.20) {102.72)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipments 0.4% 0.33
investment in / Proceeds from Fixed Deposits - 3.44
Change in Loans (net} 13.62 {16.62)
Acguisition of Investments - {0.01}
Interest Received 0.83 0.87
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES {29.26) {114.71)
C CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of Equity Shares [Refer note {c)] - -
Proceeds from Non-Current Borrowings 183.63 118.96
Repayment of Non-Current Borrowings {74.23) {137.41)
Proceeds from Short-Term Borrowings, (net) 15.91 197.93
Repayment of Lease Obligations {2.28) {2.17)
Finance Costs Paid {53.08) {46.72)
MNET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES 69,95 131.59
NET {DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - {11.62)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF YEAR 0.34 11.56
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF YEAR {Refer note 15) 0.34 0.34

Notes:

{a) The above statement of cash flow has been prepared under the 'Indirect method' as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind A%)

7- Statement of Cash Flows.

{b} Purchase and sale of property, pltant and equipment represents additions and deletions to property, plant and equipment and
investment properties adjusted for movement of capital work in progress, capital advances, capital craditors during the year.

{¢) During the year ended 31 March 2024, Company has issued equity shares {Incl. securities premium} amounting to  205.48
Miflions on conversion of Compulsory convertible debentures with no effect on cash flow of the Company.

{d) Changes in Liabilities arising from Financing Activities :
Non-Current Borrowings {Refere note 22):
QOpening Balance
Amount Borrowed during the year
Amount Repaid during the year
Non-Cash Cash Fiows
Closing Balance

537.22 554.60
183,63 119.96
(74.23) (137.41)

0.17 0.07
646.79 537.22




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
{Farmerly known as Ratnamani Healtheare Privote Limited)
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on 31 March 2024 {Cont..)

B o N (X in Milllons)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
o ) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current borrowings [Refere note 22):
Opening Balance 3458.02 151.09
Compulsory Convertible Debenures Converted to Equity Shares [Refer note (¢} above] {205.49) -
Amount (Repaid} / Borrowed during the year {net} 15.91 197.93
Closing Balance 159.44 349.02
Lease Habilities (Refere note 8):
Opening Balance 14.20 15.05
interest Accrued during the year 1.32 132
Amount Paid during the year {2.28) {2.17)
Closing Balance 13.24 14.20
Finance Cost :
Opening Balance 0.46 0.18
Finance Cost during the year 55.03 48.39
Amount Reclassified to lease Hability {1.32) {1.32)
Unwinding of fransaction Costs Incurred on Borrowings [Non-cash) {0.17) {0.07)
Amount Paid during the year {53.08) (46.72)
Closing Balance 0.92 0.46
In Terms Of Our Report Attached T for and Beha!f of Board of Directors of
For Rajesh J. Shah & Associates Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Chartered Accountants {Formerly known gs Ratnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Firm's Registration No: | #2407W CIN : U24230G]20p5P (047394
) (
Jw‘/ \ < u /
—
Rajesh J. 5\a Jitendra B, Sanghvi Swapnl! 1. $hah
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 40268 DIN 00271995 DIN 05259821
UDIN @ 24040268BKHIRIEH
Place: Ahmedabad Place; Ahmedabad

Date: 27 May 2024 Date: 27 May 2024



Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
{Formerly known as Ratnamoni Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes To The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

1 Corporata Information
Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private limited (“the Company") (Corporate Ildentity Number ('CIN'}: U24230GJ2005PTC047394) having
registered office at 1004-1006, 10th Floor, North Tower, ONE42, Off. Bopal Ambli Road, Opp. Ashok vatika, Bodakdev, Ahmedabad,
Ahmedabad, Gujarat, India, 380054 , is private limited company incorporated and domicited in India.

The Company is in the business of manufacturing of tablets, orak-liquid, capsules, powders, Injections and supplies mainly te domestic and
export markets,

2 Statement of Compliance
The financial statemants comply in all material aspects with indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act] [Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements up to year ended 31 March 2023 were prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under
Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (a5 amended} and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These financial statements are the first financial statements of the Company under Ind AS. The date of transition to Ind AS is 1 April 2022.
Refer Note 5 for the detalls of significant exemptions availed by the Company on first-time adoption of Ind AS and for an explanation of
how the transition from previeus GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

3 Basis of Preparation of financial Statements

3.1 Basis of preparation and presentation
The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis of accounting
except for the following material items which have been measured at fair value.

- Fimanciat assets and liabilities are measured at fair value or at amortised cost depending on classification;
- Lease liability and Right-of-use assets— measured at fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technigue, In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if the market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or fiability at the measurement
date. Fair value measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the financial statements is determined on such a basis except for leasing
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116 Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 Inventories or value in use in Ind AS 36 Impairment of asset.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level T inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurerment date;

- Level 2 Inputs are inputs, other than quated prices included in Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as set out in the Schedufe 11l {Division 1) to the Companies Act,
2013.

3.2 Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are prasented in Indian Rupee (%) which is also the functional currency of the Cempany. All amounts
disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded-off to the nearest Million or decimal thereof as per the
requirement of Schedule 1], unless otherwise stated. Amount less than % 5,000/ is presented as % 0.00 Millions.




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Privata Limited
{Formerly known as Ratnameani Healthcare Private Limited)
HNotes To The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2024

3 Basls of Preparation of Financial Statements [Continued..}

3.3 Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements are in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of ind AS which requires
management to make critical judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reporting of assets, liabilities, income and
expenditure, Actual results may differ from these estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and any revisions to the estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongaing basis and any revisions to the estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

Key source of estimation of uncartainty at the date of financial statements, which may cause material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets and liahilities within the next financial vear, is in respect of:

- Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
- Usaful lives of intangible assets

- Waluation of inventories

- Employee benefits

- Provisions & contingent liabilities

- Valuation of deferred tax assets

4 Materiat Accounting Policies:

Financial instrumeants

nitiaf recognition and measurement
Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial
liabifities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair vafue plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue,

Classification and subsequent measprement
For purposes of subsequent measurament, financial assets are classified based on assessment of business model and contractual cash
flows in which they are held.

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- amortised cost;

- F¥OCI -~ debt and equity investment; -

- FWTPL

At amortized cost
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its

business model for managing financial assats.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FYTPL

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash Rows that are soiely payments of principal and
interast on the principal amount outstanding.

At fair value through Other comprehensive income (FYOQ))

A financial asset is measured at FVOC!if it meets both of the following canditions and is not designated as at FYTPL:

- the asset Is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount cutstanding,




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
{Formerly known as Rotnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes To The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

4 Material accounting poficies {Continued.,)

On initial rgeognition af an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Coampany may Irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment's falr value in OC| {designated as FVOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an
investment by investrnent basis.

At fair Value through Prefit and Loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FYOC) as described above are measured at FYTPL. This includes all
derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may Irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FYOC! or at FYTPLif doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Firancial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset,

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and qains and fosses

Financial assets at FVTPL -

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

financial assets at amortised cost -

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, The amortised cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and lasses and impairment are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.
Any gain or lass on derecognition is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FYTPL, A financlal liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as
held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition, Financial liabilities at FYTPL are measured at fair
value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in Staternent of Profit and Loss. Other financial liabilities
are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in Statermnent of Profit and
Loss.

Derecognition
Finonciaf assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially al! of the risks and
rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset,

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised,

Fingncial fiohilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

The Company alse derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are
substantially different. In this case, a new financial liahility based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised In
Statement of Profit and Loss,

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are cffset and the net amount presented in the Balance Sheet when, and only when, the
Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to
realise the asset and settfe the lability simuitaneously.

Cash and cash equivafent
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance shaet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity
of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in vaiue. For the purpase of the statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are
censidered an integral part of the Company's cash managemen




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
{Formerly known as Ratnamani Heglthcare Private Limited)
Notes To The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

4 Material accounting policies {Continued..)

b.

Praperty, plant & equipment

Recognstion and measurement

ltemns of property, plant and equiprment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price including import duty and non refundable
taxes or levies , any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated
costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate
iterns {majar components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of ant item of property, ptant and equipment is recognised in statement of profit and Ioss.

Subseguent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow
to the Company.

Advances paid towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date, are shown under other
non-current assets and cost of assets not ready for intended use before the year end, are shown as capital work-in-progress.

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, ptant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated
useful lives using the straight ling method. Freehold land is not depreciated,

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Class of asset Useful life
Buildings 30 Years
Plant & Equipments 3to 20 Years
Furniture & fixtures 10 Years
WVehicles 8 Years
ffice Eguipments 5 Years
Electrical [nstallations 10 Vears

Cepreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate. 8ased on
technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent
the period over which managemant expects to use these assets.

Depreciation on additions {disposals) is provided on & pro-rata basis i.e. from {up to] the date on which asset is ready for use
{disposed of).

Leases

(il The Company os lessee:

The Company assesses whether a contract containg a lease, at the inception of contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to controt the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assesses
whether a contract conveys the right to controfl use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

* The contract invalves use of an identified asset;
* The Company has substantially all the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of lease; and
* The Company has the right to direct the use of an asset,

At the date of commencement of lease, the Company recognises a Right-of-use asset {"ROU*) and a corresponding liability far all {ease
arrangements in which it is @ lessee, except for leases with the term of twelve months or less (shart term leases) and low value leases.
For short term and low value leases, the Company recognises the izase payment as an operating expense on straight line basis over
the term of {ease. Certain lease agreements include an option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of lease term. ROU
assets and the tease liabilities includes these aptions when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.
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Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the {ease term and
useful life of the underlying asset. Right-of-use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount {i.e.,
higher of fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate
cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets, In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash
Generating Unit {CGU) to which the asset belongs,

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate explicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the
country of dornicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of- use
assets if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination of option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheat and the lease payments have been classified as
financing cash flows.

(if] The Company as @ Lessor:
Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer

substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as finance lease. All ather leases are
classified as operating lease.

tntangible assets

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets are initially measured at cost, Subsequently, such intangible assets are measurad at cost less accumulated
amartisation and any accumulated impairment losses,

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised anly when it increases the future economic bepefits embodied in the specific asset to which it
relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on brands, is recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurrad.

Amartisation

Amertisation is recognised in the staternent of profit and loss on a straight-line basiz over the estimated useful lives of intangible
assots. The amortisation expense s recognised in the statement of profit and loss account in the expense category that is consistent
with the function of the intangible asset. Intangible assets that are not available for use are amortised from the date they are available

for use,

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Class of asset  Usefullife
Product refated Intagibles 2to 3 Years
Computer Softwares . 6 Years

Business Combination

In accordance with Ind AS 103, Business combinations, the Company accounts for business combinations after acquisition date using
the acquisition method whan control is transferred to the Company. The cost of an acquisition s measured at the fair value of the
assets given, equity instruments issued and Habilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, The cost of acquisition also
includes the fair value of any contingent consideration and deferred consideration, if any. Any goodwil! that arises is tested annually
far impairment, Any gain on a bargain purchase is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve if there exists clear
evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as resutting in a bargain purchase; otherwise the gain is
recognised directly in equity as capitaf reserve. Transaction ¢osts are expensed as incurced. Business combinations between entities
under cammon controt is accounted for at carrying value.
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Impairment

(il irpoirment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind A5 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (“ECL”) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on foltowing:

in case of trade receivables, the Company follows a simplified approach wherein an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and
recognised as loss allowance.

Loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from gross carrying amount of the assets. The amount of
ECL tor reversal] that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the
Staterment of Profit and Loss,

il impairment of nan-fingnciol assets

The Company assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If any
such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amaunt is estimated and an impairment ioss is recognised if the carrying amount
of an asset or Cash Generating Unit [CGU) exceeds its estimated recoverable amount in the statement of profit and ioss.

The recoverable amaunt of a CGU [or an individual asset} is higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is
based on the estimated future cash flow, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discaunt rate that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to CGU {or the asset).

The Company's non-financial assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.
if any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For impairment testing, assets that do not generate
independent cash inflows are Combined together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU reprasents the smallest Company of
assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of othar assets or CGUs.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU s allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU,
and then 1o reduce the carrying amcunts of the other assets of the CGU (or Company of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

Animpairment loss in respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at
each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that
the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amartisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

inventories

fnvuntories are measured at the lower of cost and net reafisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the first-in first-out formula,
and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in hringing
them to their present location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work-in-progress, cost includes an
appropriate share of fixed production overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ardinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling

expenses. The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of related finished products.

Raw materials, compenents and other supplies betd for use in the production of finished products are not written down below cost
except in cases where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed their net
reatisable value,

The comparison of cost and net realisable valug isrrade-on an item-by-item bass.
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h.

Faraign currency:

Foreign currency transactions:

Foraign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settfement of such transactions and from the transfation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at balance sheet date exchange rates are generally recognised in Statement of Profit and
Leoss.

Non-moneatary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value
gain or lass. For example translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equity investments classified as FYOCI are
recoghised in other comprehensive income (OCI),

Revenue from contracts with customer

Sale of qoods

Revenue is recognised when a prormise in a customer contract (performance obligation) has been satisfied by transferring control over
the promised goods to the customer. Control over a promised goads refers to the ability to direct the use of, and obtain substantially
afl of the remaining benefits fram, those goods. Control is usually transferred upon shipment, delivery to, upon receipt of goods by the
custamer, in accardance with the delivery and acceptance terms agreed with the customers. However, In certain cases, revenue is
recognized on sale of products where shipment is on hold at specific request of the customer provided performance obligation
conditions has been satisfied and control is transferred, with customer taking title of the goods. The amount of revenue to be
recagnised {transaction price} is based on the consideration expected to be received in exchange for goods, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties such as goods and services tax or other taxes directly linked to sales. If a contract contains more
than one performanca chligation, the transaction price is allocated to each performance obligation based on their relative stand-alone
selling prices. Revenue from product sales are recorded net of allowances for estimated rebates, cash discounts and estimates of
product returns, all of which are established at the time of sale,

Far contracts with distributors, no sates are recognised when goods are physically transferred to the distributor under a consignment
arrangement, or if tho distributor acts as an agent. In such cases, sales are recognised when control over the goods transfers to the
end-tustorner, and distributor’s commissions are presented within marketing and distribution.

The consideration received by the Company in exchange for its goods may be fixed or variable. Variable consideration is only
recognised when it is considered highly probable that a significant revenue reversal will not accur once the underlying uncertainty
related to variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Mitestone payments and gut licensing arrangements

The Company enters into certain dossier sales, licensing and supply arrangements that, in certain instances, include certain
performance obligations. Based on an evaluation of whether or not these obligations are inconsequential or perfunctory, the
Company recognise or defer the upfrunt payments received under these arrangements,

Income from out-licensing agreernents typically arises from the receipt of upfront, milestone and other similar payments from third
parties for granting a license to product- or technology- related intellectual property {IP). These agreements may be entered into with
no further obligation or may include commitrments to regulatory approval, co-marketing or manufacturing. These may be settled by a
combination of upfront payments, milestone payments and other fees. These arrangements typically also consist of subsequent
payments dependent on achieving certain milastones in accordance with the terms prescribed in the agreement. Milestone payments
which are contingent on achieving certain clinical milestanes are recognised as revenues either an achievement of such milestones, if
the Milestones are considared substantive, or over the period we have continuing performance obligations, if the milestones are not
considered substantive. Whether to consider these commitments as a single parfermance obligation or separate ones, or even being
in scope of IndAS 115'Revenues from Contracts with Custorers, is not straightfarward and requires some judgement, Depending on
the conclusion, this may result in all revenue being calculated at inception and either being recognised at paint in time or spread over
the term of a longer perfarmance obligation. Where performance obligations may not be distinet, this will bundled with the
subsequent product supply obligations. The new standard providas an exemption for sales-based royalties for licenses of intellectual
property which will continue 10 be recognised as revenue as underlying sales are incurred.,
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The Company recognises a deferred income {contract liability] if consideration has been received [or has become receivable} before
the company transfers the promised goods or services to the customer. Deferred income mainly relates to remaining performance
oblipations in {partially} unsatisfied fong-term contracts or are related to amounts the Company expects to receive for goods and
services that have not yet been transferred to customers under existing, non-cancellable or otherwise enforceable contracts.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts, Contract assets are classified as
unbilled receivables {only act of invoicing s pending} when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is
required, as per contractual terms,

Sales Return Aflowances

The Company accounts for sales return by recording an allowance for sales return concurrent with the recognition of revenue at the
time of a product sale. The allowance s based on Company's estimate of expected sales returns. The estimate of sales return is
determined primarily by the Company’s historical experience in the markets in which the Company operates.

Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense & rental income

Dividend income is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on the date on which the Company's right to receive payment Is
established.

Interast income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

Rental income is recognised in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease except where the rentals
are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the
total rental income, over the term of the lease.

Government grant

The Company recognises government grants at their fair value only when there is reasonable assurance that the conditions attached
to them will be complied with, and the grants will be received. Government grants received in relation to assets are recognised as
deferred income and amortised over the useful life of such asset. Government grants, which are revenue in nature are either
recognised as income or deductad in reporting the related expense based on the terms of the grant, as applicable.

Employere banefits

Short-term emploves benefits.

All employee benefits falling due within twelve months from the end of the period in which the employees render the related services
are classified as short-term employee benefits, which include benefits like salaries, wages, short term compensated absences,
performance incentives, eic. and are recognised as expenses in the period in which the employee renders the related service and
measured accordingly.

Post-employment benefit:
Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution plans as under:

Grotusty
The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit ptan ("the Gratuity Plan"} covering the eligible employees of the Company. The

Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment to vested ernployees at retirernent, death, incapacitation or termination of employment,
af an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of the employment with the Company,

Liability with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation, performed by an independent actuary, at each balance
shect date using the projected unit credit method.

The Company recognises the net obligation of a defined benefit plan as a liability in its balance sheet. Gains or losses through
remeasurement of the net defined henefit liakility are recognised in other comprehensive income and are not raclassified to profit
and loss in the subsequent periods. The actual return of the peortfolio of plan assets, in excess of the yields computed by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation is recognised in other comprehensive income, The effect of any plan
amendments are recognised in the statarment of profit and loss.
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Provident fund

Eligible employees of the Company receive benefits from provident fund, which is a defined contribution plan. Both the eligible
emplaoyees and the Company make monthly contributions to the Government administered provident fund scheme equal to a
spocified percentage of the eligible employee’s salary. Amounts collected under the provident fund plan are deposited with in a
government administered provident fund, The Company has no further obligation to the plan beyond its monthly contributions,
Company's contribution to the provident fund is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Compensated absences

The Company’s current policy permits eligible employees to accumulate compensated absences up to a prescribed limit and receive
cash in lieu thereof in accordance with the terms of the policy. The Company measures the expected cost of accumulating
compensated absences as the additional amount that the Company expects 1o pay as a result of unused entitlement that has
accurnulated as at the reporting date. The expected cost of these benefits is calculated using the projected unit credit method by
qualified actuary every year, Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustmant and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise. The obligations are presented as current liabilities in
the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right te defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting
peripd, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to accur,

m, Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs {including exchange differences relating to foreign currency borrowings to the extent that
they are regarded as an adjustmant to interest costs) incurrad in connection with the barrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly
attiibutable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

n. Incume taxes
tncome tax comprises of current and deferred income tax. Income tax expense is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to
the extent that it relales to anitem recognised directly in equity in which case it is recognised in other comprehensive income. Current
income tax for current year and pricr periods is recognised at the amount expected 1o be paid or recovered from the tax authorities,
using the tax rates and |laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is
intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultanegusly.

Deferred income tax assets and (fabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabitities and their carrying ameunts in the financial statements except when:

— tzmporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and
that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or 10ss at the time of transaction; and

— temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and Joint arrangements to the extent that the Company is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differances and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at cach reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probabie that the related tax
benofit will be realised,

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected 1o apply to taxable income in the years in which those temperary differences are expected
to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognised as income or
expense in the period that includes the enactment or substantive enactment date, A deferred income tax assets is recognised to the
extent it is probable that future taxabie income will be available against which the deductible temporary timing differences and tax
losses can be utilised, The Company offsets income-tax assets and liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liahility simultaneously.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will be availablo against which they canbe ysed.,
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o,

Provisions and contingencies

4 disclosure for a contingent liability is made when thers is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will
not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible abligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of
outilow of resources is remopte, no provision or disclosure is made,

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Comparny has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of 2conomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, Provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability, The unwinding of the discount Is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are
not provided for,

Gnerous cantracts

A contract is considered to be oneraus when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Campany from the contract are
lower than the unavoidable cost of maating its obligations under the contract, The provision for an onerous contract is measured at
the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the
contract. Before such a provision is made, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed using the weightad average number of equity shares outstanding during the period adjusted for
trensury shares held. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted-average number of equity and dilutive equivalent
sharcs outstanding during the period, using the treasury stack method for options and warrants, except where the results would be
anti-ditutive,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash, drafts and cheques in hand, bank balances,
unencumbered demand depesits with barks where the original maturity is three maonths or less and other short term highly liquid
investments. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash management are
included as a component of casn sinu cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Staternent,

Qperating cycle

All zssets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria
set out in the Schedule 1l of the Campanies Act, 2012, Operating cycle for project relatad assets and liabilities is the time from start of
the project to their realisation in cash or cash equivalents.

Exceptional items
Excoptional items refer to items of incoma or expense within the statement of profit and loss from ordinary activities which are
nonrecurring and are of such size, nature or incidence that their separate disclosure is considered necessary to explain the

perfarmance of the Company.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Campany’s other components, and for which
discrete financial information is available, Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decisian maker. The Directors of the Company is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segmants and accordingly is identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM}. All cperating
segments’ operating results are reviowed regularty by the CODM to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments
and assess their perfermance.

Events after reporting date
Where events oceurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reparting period,
the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial statements, Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size

or nature are only disclased.

Recant accounting pronouncements
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs {"MCA"} notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issusd from time to time. For the year ended 31 March 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards
or amendraents to the existing standards applicab
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5 First Time Adoption:

5.1 Explanation of transition to Ind AS
These financial statements are the first financial stotements of the Company under Ind AS. The date of transition to Ind AS is 1 April 2022, The
transition is carried aut from Indian GAAP [previous GAAF) to Ind AS, notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 [Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2018] and other relevant provisions of the Act. The Company has applied exceptions and exemnptions in accordance with
Ind AS 101 "First-time Adoption of Indian Accaunting Standards”.

Esceptions :

1 Estimates :
The entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in
accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those
estimates were in error.

2 Derecognition of financial assets & liahilities :
The Campany has applied the de-recognition requircments of Ind AS 109 prospectively from the date of transition to ind AS.

3 Classification and measurement of financial assets :
The Company has assessed classification and measurement of financial assets based on facts and ¢ircumstances prevalent an the date of transition
to Ind AS,

4 Impairment of financial assets :
The Company has applied impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively to financial instrumeants and concluded that there is no need to
recognize any additional loss allowance an financial assets,

Exemptions ;

1 Fair value as deemed cost exemption:
The Company has elected to measure items of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at its carrying value as it is considered as fairly

valued at the transition date
Notes to reconcilistions between previous GAAP and Ind AS :

A Fair valuation of security deposits:
Under Ind AS, szcurity deposits are carried zt anortised cost. Under pravious GAAP, the same were carried at cost, This difference has resulted in
decrease in equity under Ind AS % (.05 Million: a3 at 31 March 2023 (X Nil as at 1 April 2022) and decrease of loss by % 0.05 Millions for the year
endad 21 March 2023,

B HNon-current borrowings at aimortised cost:
Under Ind &3, Non-current borrowings are carried at amortised cost. Under previous GAAP, the borrowings are carried at their historical cost. This
difference has resulted in increase in equity under Ind A5 % 1.27 Millions as at 31 March 2023 (% 0.5 Millions 25 at 1 Aprit 2022) and increase of
prefit by T 0.65 Millions for the year ended 31 March 2023

C Remeasurement of gratuity recognised in other camprehensive income:
Under Ind A5, the actuarial gains and losses form part of remeasurement of the net defined benefit liabifity and are recognised in other
comprenensive income. Under previous GAAP, actuarial gains and losses were recognised in statemant of profit and loss. This difference has
resulted in increase of loss by X 0.22 Millions for the year ended 31 March 2023,

D Leases:
Under ind AS, frase contracts are recognised as assets and liabilities based on recognition criterias. Rent expenses paid Ts reversed and depreciation
on right of use assets and interest on lease liability accounted in statement of profit and foss.

E Deferred Taxes:
Ind AS requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the Balance Sheet approach which focuses on temporary differences between the
carrying amount of an asset or liability in the Baiance Sheet and its tax base. Various transitional adjustments have led to deferred tax implications
which the Company has accounted for, Deferred tax adjustments are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in Retained
earnings or Other Comprehensive income on the date of transition.

F Others:
Ind AS 101 permits a first ime adopter to adjust accounting practices followed under Previous GAAP if it becomes aware of an error as part of its
Ind AS transition. Accordingly, on transitian te ind A3, the Company has realigned accounting,

G Regrouped, recast & reclassified
Figures of the earlier year have been reclassifiad to confirm 197

__ﬁfﬁfé?;anajzion requirements.

’,;/ e NN
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5.2 Balance Sheet as at 1 April 2022

{X in Milfions}

Particulars Note IGAAP IndAS IndAS
Adjustment
ASSETS
Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 571.79 - 571.79
Right-of-use assets ) - 15.65 15.65
Other Intangible assets 0.15 - 0.15
Financial assets - -
Investrmeants 0.06 - Q.06
Other financial assats A 2.02 0.62 1.4
Deferred tax assets (net) B, EF 83.94 83,94 -
Income tax assets (net) €] - .17 9.17
Cther non-current assets 5] 226,48 220.00 5.48
Total non-current assets 884.44 275.74 604,70
Current assets
Inventories G 178.55 7.50 171.05
Financial assets
Investments - - -
Trade recetvaies 249.16 - 2458.16
Cash 2nd cash vquivalents 11.56 - 11.96
Bank balances uther than cash and cash equivalents 5.02 - 5.02
Cther financial assets G 7.18 0.02 7.20
Other current assets G 20454 118.13 86.41
Total current assets 656.41 125,61 530.80
TOTAL ASSETS 1,540.85 405.35 1,135.50
ECQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capiizi 18.77 - 18.77
Other equity B, EF 111.50 86,52 14,98
Total equity 130.27 96.52 33.75
Mon-current liahities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings B, G 83641 290.01 546.40
Lease liabilities D - 14.28 14.28
Other financial liabilities G 4.62 4.62 -
Prowisions G 123.74 115.82 7.92
Deferred tax liabilites (net) B, E,F - 11.38 11.38
Cther non-current liabilities <1 0,92 0.92 -
Total non-current liakilities 965.69 385.71 575.98
Current fiahilities
Financial liabilities
Borrawings B G 89.586 &50.43 159.29
Lease liahilities D - 0.77 0.77
Trade payahles
Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 195.97 - 195.97
Dues of croditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 118.63 - 118.63
Other financial iiabilities F, G B.17 4.62 12.79
Pravisions F,G - 1.14 1.14
Other current liabilities €] 322 0.92 33.18
Total current liahilities 444.89 76.88 521.77
Total liabilities 1,410.58 308.83 1,101.7%
Total equity and lizbilities 1,540.85 405,35 1,135.50
— T
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5.3 Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

{T in Millions)

Particulars Note IGAAP IndAs IndAS
Adjustment
ASSETS
Non-turrent assots
Froperty, plant and equipment S87.50 - 587.50
Capital wark-in-progress 26.5Q - 26.50
Right-of-use assels D - 13.85 12.85
Other intangible assets G 0.07 1261 12.68
Intangible assets under development 1.27 - 1.27
Financial assets
Investments 0.07 - 0.07
Other financial assats A, G 2215 - 19.56 2.59
Deferred tax assols {net) A, B, D,EF 103.55 - 103.55 -
income tax assels | net) 4 - 7.60 7.60
COther non-current assets G 216.34 215.89 6.45
Total non-current assats 967.45 - 308.94 658.51
Current assets
Inventories 12521 - 125.31
Financial assets
Trade receivabies 234.23 - 234.23
Cash and cash equivalents 0.34 - 034
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivaients 1.58 - 1.58
Lzans 16,62 - 16.62
Cther financial assets G 3.18 19.01 22.18
Other current assets [c] 213.64 - 129.17 84,47
Total current assets 594.90 - 110.16 484.74
TOTAL ASSETS 1,562.35 419.10 1,143.25
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capiis! 18,77 - 18.77
Other eqtrity A, B DLEF 96.10 - 108.67 12,57
Total equity 114.87 - 108.67 6.20
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings B G 948,74 - 426.47 522.27
Lease liabitities o - 13.24 13.24
Cther financial tiabilities G 584 - 5.94 -
Frovisions - G 114.46 - 108.40 6.06
Deferrad tax liabifities (net) A B DEF - 371 371
Cther nan-current iiabifities G 1.31 - 1.31 -
Total non-current liabilities 1,070.45 - 525.17 545.28
Current lizhilities
Financial fabilities
Borrowings B, G 158.65 205,32 363.97
Lease liabilities D - 0.96 0.86
Trade payables
Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 91.78 - 91.78
Dues of ereditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 8%.70 - 89,70
Other financial lizkilities F, G 16,09 5.95 22.04
Provisions F.G - 1.21 1.21
Other current liakifities 3 20.81 1.30 22.11
Total current liabititias 377.03 214.74 591,77
Total liabilities 1,447.48 - 310.43 1,137.05
Total equity and liakilities 1,562.35 - 419.10 1,143.25




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
{Formerly known as Rotnamani Healthcare Private Lirnited)
Notes To The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

5 First time adoption {Cont..)

5.4 Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on 31 March 2023

Total equity under Ind AS

{% in Millions}
Particulars Note IGAAP IndAS IndAS
Adjustment
Incame
Revenue from aparations 1,164.33 - 1,164.33
Other income €] 28.41 0.05 28.46
Total Income 1,192.74 0.05 1,192.79
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 704.01 - 704.01
Purchases of stock-in-trade 80.64 - 80.64
Changes in inventaries of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade {21.45]) - {21.45)
Employee benefils axpanse C 135.52 0.30 135.82
Finamce costs B, D 47.75 0.64 43,39
Depreciation and . mertisation expanse D 51.80 1.80 53.60
QOther expenses o 235.49 {2.19} 237.20
Total Expenses T1,237.76 0.55 1,238.31
Profit / {Loss] Before Exceptional ftems and Tax {45.02) {0.50) {45.52)
Exceptional ltems 10.00 - 10.00
Frofit / [Loss) Befure Tax (35.02) {(0.50} {35.52)
Tax Expenses
Current Tax - - -
Deferrad Tax Chargef (Credit) ABCDEFG {1961} 11.86 (7.75)
Total Tax Expenses {19.61) 11.86 {7.75}
Profit / [Loss) for the year {15.41) {12.36) 127.77)
Other Comprehensive Income
Ttemns That Will Mot Be Reclassified Subsequently to Profit or Loss
fa-measuren-ual [Lossesh/Gains on Defined lenalit Plans C - .20 a.30
Imcome Tax Relating Lo Above G - {0.08) (0.08)
- 0.22 0.22
Total Comprehensive Income {15.41} (12.14} {27.55]
5.5 Reconciliation of equity
o _ {% in Millions)
. As at As at
Particulars Notes 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Total equity {Shar'e.holder's fund) as per previous GAAP 114,87 130.27
Non-current boricwings at amortised cost B 1.27 0.59
Leases D {0.95) -
Eair valuation of security deposits A .05 -
Oefarrad Tax Adjustments ABDEF (109.04) (97.11)
6.20 33.75




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Himited
(Formerly known as Ratnorani Healfthcare Private Limited]
Notas To The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

5 First time adoption {Cont..})

5.6 Reconclliation of total comprehensive income

o {% in Millions}

Particulars R Motes Year endad

31 March 2023

Profit / {Loss) aftor tax as per previous GAAP (15.41)
Non-current borrowings at amortised cost B 0.69
Leases D {0.94)
£air valuation of security deposits A 0.05
Oeferred Tax Adjustments B, DEF {11.86)
Remeasurement of gratuity recognised in other camprehensive income C {0.30}
Profit / (Loss) after tax as per Ind AS {27.77)
Other comprehensive income {net of tax) C 0.22
{27.55)

Totat comprehensive income under Ind AS

5.7 Cash Flow Statement
The transition from previous GAAP to ind AS has not had a material impact on the statement of cash flows.
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Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
fFormerly known ¢s Rataamani Henlthcare Private Limited}
Notes To The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

7 Capital Work-In-Progress

) B [% in Millicns)
. As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 Masch 2023
Opening Balance 26,50 -
Additiohs during the year 2.37 26.50
Capitalised during the year - -
Closing Balance 28.87 26.50
7.1 Capital Work-In-Progress ageing scheduie for the year ended :
) e {% in Millions)
amount In Capital Work-In-Progress for a petiod of
As at 31 March 2024 Less than 1
5 :ear 1-2 yrs 2-3yrs Mare than 3 yrs Total
Projects in Progress® 2.37 26.50 28.87
Total B 2.37 26.50 - - 28.87
o ) {% in Millions)
amount in Capital Work-ln-Progress for a period of
As at 31 March 2023 L 1
ess than 1-2 yrs 2-3yrs More than 3 yrs Total
e N year =
Projects in Progress? .~ 26.50 - - - 26.50
Total o 26.50 - - i 26.50
B {% in Millions}
Amount in Capital Wark-In-Progress for a period of
As at 1 April 2022 Less th
P € ::;n 4 1-2 yrs 2-3yrs More than 3 yrs Total

Projects in Propress®

Total

7.2 Faor Capital ‘Work-In Progress, there is nu project whose completion is overdue of has aiceeed its cost compared to its original plan.

8 Leases:

8.1 Right-of-use Assets

{Z in Millions}

Buildings

Gross Carryine amount as at 1 April 2023
Additions during the year

Deductions dnring the year

Gross Carrying amount as at 31 March 2024

Accumulated Depreciation as at 1 April 2023
Depreciation for the year

Deductions during the year

Accumulated Depreciation as at 31 March 2024

Net Carrying winount as at 31 March 2024

Gross Carrying armount as at 1 April 2022
tdditions during the year

Deductions during the year

Grass Carrying amount as at 31 March 2023
Accumulated Depreciation as at 1 April 2022
Depreciation for the year

Deductions during tha year

Accumulated Depreciation as at 31 March 23
Met Carrying amount as at 31 March 2023
et Carrying emount as at 1 April 2022

15.65

15.65

1.80
1.80

3.60

_——

12.05

—
—_—

15,65




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
{Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Privote Limited)]
Notes To The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

8.2 Lease liabilities

Set out below sre the Carrying amounls o_f_LEa_sg Liakifities recognised and movement during the year :

icul As at As at
Particulars ) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the beéinning of the year {adopted Ind AS as 1 April 2022) 14.20 15.05
Interest on Lease Liabilities 1.32 1.32
Payments of Lease Liabilities [2.28} {2.17)
Balance at the end of the year 13.24 14,20
8.3 Maturity Analysis of Lease Labilities: -
Particulars Asal As at
o e o ez 31 March ZOZ{ﬁ_M;rt:h 2023
Less than 1ywar 2.39 2.28
1-5 years 10.84 10.32
Maore than 5 vears 501 7.93
Total undiscounted Lease Liability 18.24 10.53
Less : Future Liahility on Interest Account - {5.00) {6.33)
Balance of Lease Liahility . 13.24 14.20
Mon-current 12.06 13.24
Current ” 1.18 .96
8.4 Amounts recoghised in Statement of Profit and Loss: )
particulars Year ended Year ended
B 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Depreciation of Right of use Assets - {Refer note 33} 1.80 1.80
Interest on Lease Liabilities - (Refer note 32} 132 1.32
Expense relating to Short Term Lease - {Refer note 34) 0.12 0.22
3.24 334

Total

£.5 Other notes:

{i)  Lease contract entered by the Cornoany Alung with Ratnagene Lifesciences Private ki

conduct ity business in the ordinary courss
fi)  The Company has not revalued its Rizhl-ct e assets.

{ii} Lease oblipations, interest expense on teuse, maturity profile of lease obligation and payment o

in Balsnce Sheet, Finance costs {refer note 32}, Liguidity risk {refer note 42} and Statement of Cash Flows.

1ed pertains to office buildings taken on lease to

f lease obligations are disclosed respectively



Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
{Formerly known us Ratnamani Healtheare Private Limited)

Motes Ta The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

9

10

Intangible Assets:

_ o {% in Millicns)
Praduct related Computer
|
Intagibles Softwares Tota
Gross Carrying amount as at 1 April 2023 16.81 0.15 16.96
Additions during the year 11.42 1.84 13.26
Deductions during the year - - -
Grass Carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 28.23 1.99 30.22
Accumulated Amortisation as at 1 April 2023 4.20 6.08 4.28
Amartisation for the year 7.06 0.10 7.16
Deductions during the year - - -
Accurnulated Amortisation as at 31 March 2024 11.26 0.18 11.44
Net Carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 - 16.97 1.81 18.78
Grass Carrying amount as at 1 April 2022 - 0.15 .15
Additions during the year 16.81 - 16.81
Deductions dunng the year - - -
Gross Carrying armount as at 33 March 2022 16.81 0.15 16.96
Accumulated Amortisation as at 1 April 2022 - - -
Amaortisation for the year 4.20 0.08 4.28
Deductions during the year - - -
Accumulated Amortisation as at 31 March 2023 4.20 0.08 4.28
Net Carrying amount as at 31 March 2023 12.61 .07 12.68
Net Carrying amount as at 1 April 2022 - .15 0.15
tntangibles Azsets under Development:
i B . [ in Millions)
. As at As at
Particalars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening Balusice 1.27 -
Additions during the year 0.57 1.27
Capitalised during the year {1.84}
- 1.27

Closing Balance

Notes:

10.1 Ir‘ltal'Ij.:ihle Assets Under Devetopment ageing schedule :

As at 31 March 2024

Ammaount in Intangibles Asscts under Development for a period of

lLess than 1
year

1-2 yrs

2-3yrs

More than

3 yrs

Total

Projects in Frogress®

Total

Amaount in Intangibles Assets under Development for a period of

As at 31 March 2023 h M
at &re lLess than 1 12 yrs 2.3 yrs ore than Total
o yaar Iyrs
Projects in Progress* o 1.27 - - 1.27
Totai - 1,27 - - 1.27

As at 1 April 2022

Amount in Intangibles Ass__éts under Development for a periad of

Less than 1
year

1-2 yrs

Z-3yrs

Meore than

3yrs

Total

Frojects in Progress®

Total




Ratnatris Pharmace iticals Private Limited
{Formerly known os Rotnomani Heafthcare Private Limited)
Notes To The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

% in Millions)

particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
11 Investmenis:
MNon-current
At cost, Unguoted
Investment in Government Securities# 0.00 g.00 0.00
Others 2.07 0.07 0.06
Total 0.07 0.07 0.06
# Investrient in Malional Savings Certificates amaunting 1o T 1,000
* Refer note 42 - Einancial Insteurments - Fair Value Measurement & Financial Risk Management
12 Loans:
{Unsecured and Considered good, unless otherwise stated}
{Carried at amgtised cost, exceptBtherwise stated)
Current
Loans to Related Parties (refer note 44) 3.00 16.62 -
Total 3.00 16.62 -
* Refer note 42 - Financial Instruments - Fair Valug Measurement & Financial Risk Management
Note:
{it There are ne: loans which have significant increase in credit risk andikhich are credil impaired
13 Other Finanoini Assets:
[Unsecured and considerad good, unless otherw.se stated)
{Carried at amastised cost, exceptBtherwise stated)
Mon-Current
Security Depasits 3.35 2.54 1.25
Fixed Deposit with maturity of more than 12 manths 0.42 0.05 0.15
3.77 2.59 1.40
Current
Security Depoyits
Incentives/ & nefits Receivable from Goeernment 4.81 270 7.18
Claimns receizisle {Indirect Tax / Insurange / Othars}) - 19.00 -
Interest acericed on Deposits & Loans 0.36 0.01 0,02
Other Receivables - 0.48 -
5.17 22,19 7.20
* Refer note 42 - Financial Instruments - Fair Value Measurement & Financial Risk Management
14 Income Taxes! Year ended Year ended

U

()

{c)

Charge / (Credit] recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss;
Current Tax:

Expense for current year
Deferred Tax:

Deferred Tax Charge/{Credits) for the year

{Charge) / Credit racognised in other comprehensive incoma
Re-measuremont gains / {losses) on defined bonefit plans
Reronciliation of Etfective Tax Rate :

Profit / (Loss) before Taxes
Enacted Tax rate in India
Expected Income Tax expensas
Adjustments to reconcile reported Income Yax expense:
Effact of expenses not deductible in determining taxable profit
Othars {nct)
Adjusted Income Tax expenses
Effective Tax Rata

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

{40.60) {7.75)
{40.60) {7.75)
{0.26) {0.08)
{0.26) {0.08)
{160.18} {35.52)
27.82% 27.82%
{44.56) {9.8%)
4.18 2.15
0.04 0.06
{40.34) {7.67)
25.18% 21.60%



Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
{Formerly known as Ratnamani Healthcare Private Lintited)

Motes To The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

- {% in Milllons)
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
{d) Deferred Tax relates to:
Deferred Tax Assets:
Tax Losses 157.00 125.08 115.81
Provision for Employee Benefit Expense 3.68 3.11 3.23
Expenses allowable on payment basis 7.60 - -
MAT Credit Entitlernent 1.78 1.78 1.78
Leases 0.50 0.28 -
Sub-total {A} 170156 130.25 121.82
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 51.23 61.21 60.64
Others o 0.30 035 0.16
Sub-total (B) . 6153 6156 60.80
Deferred Tax Ascets [ (Liakilities) net {C = A - B) 109.03 68.69 61.02
Less: earmaked against specific borrowing (refer note 22) {D) 72.40 72.40 72.40
Defarred Tax Assets / [liabilities) net {C- D) 36.63 {3.71) {11.38)

The Deferred 1ax liabilities / Assets are off-3at, where the company has a legally enforceable right to set-off assets against liabilities, and are

presented in Lalance sheet as follows:
Deferred Tax Assots
Deferred Tar Latalities

36.63

3.71

11.38

36.63

{3.71}

{11.38)

Under the Incame-Tax Act, 1961, the Company is fiable to pay Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT}. MAT paid can be carried forward for a period of 15
years and can be set off against the future tax liabilities. MAT is recopnised as a Deferred Tax Asset only when the asset can be measured reliably
and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.

{e) Movement of D-ferced Tax Liahilities / (Assets) during the year:

{7

. e {% in Millions)
Recognised in
Particulars As at statement of : Other As at
’ 1 April 2023 ) 31 March 2024
Profit and Loss Camp.Income
Deferred Tax LiabilTies { {Assets) in relation to:
Tax Losses 125.08 1192 - 157.00
Pravision for Employee Benefit Expense 311 0.83 0.26) 3.68
Expenses allowable on payment basis - 7.60 - 7.60
MAT Credit Eptitlament 1.78 - - 1.78
Leases 0.28 0.22 - 0.50
Property, Pionl and Equipmeant and Intangibic Assets (61.21} {0.02) - {61.23)
Others {0.35}) 005 - {0.20)
Deferred Tax Liahilities / {Assets) nat 68.69 40.60 {0.26) 109.03
{¥% in Millions)
Recognised in
Particulars As at statameant of : Other As at
1 April 2022 ) 31 March 2023
Profit and Loss Comp.Income
Deferrad Tax Liabilities / {Assets) in retation ta:
Tax Losses 116.81 8.27 - 125.03
Provision for Lmplovee Benefit Expense 3.23 {0.04) {0.08) 311
MAT Credit =nlitlement 1.78 - - 1.78
Leases - 0.28 - 0.28
Prapetty, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets {60.64) {0.57) - (61.21)
Others {0.16) (0.19) - {0.35)
Deferred Tax Liabilities f {Assets) net 61.02 7.75 {D.08) 68.69
Tax assets and fiabilities:
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Income Tax Ass'c}f?iwet} B 535 7.60 9.17

Income Tax Liabiiities

Ce )




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
{Formerfy known as Ruinomani Heolthcare Private Limited)
Notes To The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

{Z in Millions}

Particulars As at As at As at
~ 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
15 Other Assets:

[Unsecured And Considered Good, Unless Otherwise Stated]
MNon-current

Capital Advancas 2.31 5.45 6.48

Payment Mode Under Protest 7.90 - -
Total 10.21 b6.45 6.48
Current

Gross Indirect Taxes Recoverable 187.34 186.83 190,36

Less: earmaied against specific borrowing (refer note 22) {107.18) {107.19) {107.19)
Indirect Taxes Aecoverable £20.15 79.64 83.17
Advances Ta Supalivrs 31.39 274 142
Pre-Faid Expenses 2.4 1.83 1.68
Ernployee Advances 0.31 0.26 0.14
Total 114.59 84.47 86.41

16 Inventories:
[At Lower of (.ot or Net Realisable Value]
Raw Materials 51,10 59,97 132,05
Packing Materisi 3491 25.90 28.51
Work-In-Progr.os 50.52 6.71 11.02
Finished Goods 1728 32.73 £.97
153.81 125,31 178.55
Less: Inunetory provision as per the NCLT scheme (Refer note ) - - [7.50)
153.81 125.31 171.05

16.1 The Company {reversed)/ charged inventory write-down (net} of ® Nil Millions, T Nil Millions and % 7.5 Millions to statement of Profit and Loss for

the year ended 21 March 2024, 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2022 respectively,

16.2 Inventories are hypothecated as Security for 8orrowings as disclosed under note 22,

17 Trade Receivailos:
[Carried at amo. tised cust, except otherwise stat=d)
{a] Gross Unscoared, Considered good
Less: Earminked Against Specific Borrowing {Refer Note 22)
nsecured, Considered good
{b) Unsecured, Credit-mpaired
Less : Allowsace for Credit Loss

* Refer note 42 - £ nancizl Instruments - Fair Value Measurement & Financial Risk Management

17.1 Receivable Froim Related Parties included Abova. (Reter Note 44}

403.13 274.53 289.57
{40.14} {40.30) {40.41)
352.99 234.23 249.16
.34 - R
362.65 234.23 249.16
20.81 14.22 30.39

17.2 Out of total Trade Receivables T 40.14 Milions, £40.20 Millions and % 40.41 Millions perlaining to 31 March 2024, 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2022

respectively are earmaked against 0% Redecmable Non-convertible Debentures,

17.3 Aging of Trade Receivables from the Due Date of Payment:

- (% in Millions)
T T - T Qutstanding for following pe_riodg from due date of payment
As at 31 March 2024 Unbilled Not Due Less than 1fear- 2 Year - Morg than Taotal
_________ o & months 2 Vuars 3 Years 3 Years

Undisputed
Cansiderad gooni 031 203.47 100.95 21.43 17.44 42.20 403.13
Credit Impaired - - - = -
Less: earmaked apainst specific {40.14) {40.14)
borrowing frefer note 23] _ —

= 21.43 27.44 2.06 362,99

Total - R N T 100.95




Ratnatris Pharmaceuiicals Private Limited
{Formerly known gs Raltamani Healthcare Private Limited)

Notes To The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

17 Trade receivabies {Cont..):

17.3 Aging of Trade Ruceivables from the Due Date of Payment:

g o R o o {% in Millions)
o . Qutstanding for following neriods from due date of payment
Az at 31 March #4123 Unhilteu NotDue  Lessthan & manths T 1 Year- 2 Year- More than Total
o o B 6 months ~iyear  2Yewrs 3 ¥ears 3 Years
‘Undisputed B S
Considered good - 156.49 30.96 9.04 31.36 3,55 43.13 274.53
Credit Impaired - - ] - -
Less; earmaked sgainst specific - - - - - (40.20) {40.30)
borrowing {refer note 22] o ) ) -
Total L - 156.49 3096 904 3136 3.55 2,83 234.23
o L o i (% In Milligns}
_ Qutstanding fnrfollowinglppfiuis from dug date of payment
Asatl April 207 Unbilled Mot Due Less than b months_ ) 1Yeoar- 2 Year - vtore than Total
I B & months - 1vyear 2 Years 3 Years 3 Years
Undlsputed o
Considered gnodl 0.39 195.09 5.3z 38.06 3,95 6.35 40.41 289.57
Crodit Impaired - - = - - - -
Less: earmaked apainst specific . - - . - {40.41) (40.41)
horrowing (refer note 22) I B
Total .39 195,09 5.32 38.06 3.95 5.35 - 249.16
e o (£ in Millions)
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
18 Cash and Cash Couivalents:
Balances With danks
S Current A 012 0.08 11.7%
Cash On rlar:; 0.22 0.26 0.21
L 0.34 0.34 11.96
* Refer note 47 nacial instrumants - Fair Vatue Beasurement & Financial Bisk Management
19 Bank balances uthor than cash and cash equivatents
in Deposit Accounts - Held As Margin Money 1.58 1.58 5.02
1.58 1.58 5.02

* Refer note 42 - Financiat Instruments - Fair Valug Measurement & Financial Risk Management




Ratnatris Pharmaceuvricat. Private Limited
{Farmerly known as Foincmani Healthcare Private Lovited)
Motes To The Financia! 5t.ttements for the year ended 31 March 2024

) N {% in Millions}
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
20 Equity Share Capit:l:
Authorised
45,000,000 [PY 45,00:,000 {(PPY 45,00,000]] cquity sheres of % 10 each 45.00 45,00 45.00
45.00 45.00 45,00
lssued, Subscribed and fully paid-up
37,844,726 [PY 12,7¢,636 [PPY 18,76,636)] equity shares of T 10 each 37.45 18.77 18,77
37.45 18.77 18.77

{i} The Company has cnly one class of Equity Shares having a par value of € 10 per share, Each holder of Equity Share is entitled to one vote per share.
The Company declires and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Doard of Directors Is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in thi: ensuing Annual General Mieting except in case of Interim Dividend. In the event of Liquidation of the Company, the holdars of
£quity shares will Lo entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of sl preferential amounts, The distribution will be in

proportion to tha ramber of Equity Shares held by the Shareholder.

{ii} Reconciliation of Equity Shares outstandiny at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Particulars

o L No. of Shares % in Millions No. of Shares % in Millions
As atthe beginning of the year 1,876,636 18.77 1,876,636 18.77
Add: Issued during g year 1,863,000 18.68 - -
Total o - 3,744,726 37.45 1,876,636 18.77
{iii} Datails of Sharehotders holding more than 5% shares in the Company =
\ 31 March 2024
Particulars
No. of Shares %
Senores Pharmaceticals Limited 2,583,861 59.00%
Ratnarmani Mar- et g Private Limited 270,000 7.21%
, - T 31 March 2023
Particulars
o R Mo. of Shares %
Ratnamari Ma:ixx w3 Private Limited 750,000 33.57%
Jitendra Babula! Sanghvi 250,091 13.33%
Jayanti Misrimal Sanghvi 162,000 8.63%
Kaushal Champalal Shansali 126,815 6.76%
Dimpte Manoj Sanghvi 108,000 5.75%
fano) Prakash Sanshwi 108,000 5.75%
Pavar Misrima! Sa.. shvi 108,000 5.75%
vimla Pavan Sanigh - 108000 5.75%
'!(iv} Disclosure of Sharc olding of Promotars:
. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 % Change during
Particulars — -~
- ___No. of Shares % No. of Shares % the year
Senores Pharmaceuticals Limited 2,583,861 69.00% - 0.00% 69.00%
Ratnamani Marketisg Private Limited 270,000 7.21% 750,000 39.97% -32.75%
Jitendra Babulal Sanighvi 14,320 0.38% 250,091 13.33% -12.94%
layanti Misrimal Sa.aghyi 162,000 4,33% 162,000 8.63% -4.31%
Mangj Prakash San hvi 108,000 2.88% 108,000 5.75% -2.87%
Dirnple Mana; Sang. v 108,000 2.88% 108,000 S.75% -2.87%
Pavan Misrimal 53 1hvi 108,000 2.88% 108,000 $.75% -2.87%
Vimla Pavan sanghvi 108,000 2.88% 108,000 5.75% -2.87%
Shanti Misrimal Sanghwi 54,000 1.44% 54,000 2.838% -1.44%
Sashi Shantilal Sangnvi 54,000 1.44% 54,000 2.88% -1.44%




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
{Formerly known as Rotnonanf Heafthcore Privale Lintited)
Hotes To The Financia! 5t tements for the year ended 31 March 2024

{ivi Disclosure Of $harcholding Of Promoters (Cont.. ):

) 31 March 2023 "~ 1April 2022 % Change during
Particulars - ——
- 3 No. of Shares % __No. of Shares % the year

Ratnamani Marketing Private Limited 750,000 39.97% 750,000 39.97% 0.00%
Jitendra Babutal Saspghvi 250,091 13.33% 250,081 13.33% 0.00%
Javanti Misrirmal Saghvi 162,000 8.63% 162,000 B.63% 0.00%
Wano] Prakash San_ivi 108,000 5.75% 103,000 5.75% 0.00%
Dimple Manoj Sansivi 108,000 5.75% 108,000 5.75% 0.00%
Pavan WMisrimal 5an zhvi 108,000 5.75% 108,000 5.75% 0.00%
vimla Pavan Sanglii 108,000 5.75% 108,000 5.75% 0.00%
Shanti Misrimal Sanghvi 54,000 2.38% 54,000 2.88% 0.00%
Sashi Shantilal Sang;hvi _ 54,000 2.88% 54,000 2.88% 0.00%

[v} The Company has rat issued any Bonus Shases, Shares for consideration other than Cash or bought back any Shares during five years immediately
Preceding the Roporting date,

. N _ {% in Millions)
particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
21 Other Equity:
Retzined Earnings {325.86) {206.94) {179.39}
Securities Pramiur 374.38 187.57 187.57
Capital Reserve: 6.80 6.80 6.20
Total 55.32 {12.57) 14,98
22  Borrowings:
Mon-Current
Secured
Term Loan: [rom Banks £5.47 58.47 23.92
Unsecured
Zero Coupon Mon-Convertible Debontures (Meds) (Refer Note 22.2 & 22.3) 0.27 0.11 -
Loains Froie teared Parties 357.36 305.15 365.39
Loans Feon: {heers 207.97 158.50 157.09
63107 522.27 546.40
Current
Current Maturiti:s OF Non-Current Borrowing, Secured
Term Loans From Banks 1572 14.95 8.20
Other Borrowings
Sacured
Woarking Capital Facilities 159,44 143.53 81.59
Unsecures
Cawp-sizory Convertible Debentures - 205.49 69,50
17516 363.97 159.29

# Refer note 42 - £ noaciol instrumeants - Fair Value Measurement & Financial Risk Management
22.1 The Company has bean sanctioned Waorking Capital limits from banks on the basis of Security of Current Assets. The Quarterfy Returns or
statements filzd by the Company with such Banks are in agreement with the Books of Accounts cf the Company.,

22.2 The Company has issued Zero Coupon Redeemable Non-Convertible Debenures (NCD) amounting to % 220 Millions against the partial claim of

unsecurad lenders of the Company. The Canditions are as follows:

{i) Zero Coupnn KCDs will not carry any tnterest and they will be unsecured.

{ii} The rederiglicn of Zero Coupon NCTs are linked to the recoveries of the items of Assets mentioned in 22.3.

{iii) As and wian tae Company makes reccwery / realization in respect of any of the above mentioned assets, these NCDs are to be redeemed to
holders af HC13 on progressive basis.

{iv} If howeve:, the Company 1s unable to make full recovery of the entire amount of assets as moentioned in above sub-note {ii) within period of 15
years fram the Jate of NCLT arder, Unrecavorad Assets mentioned above to be written off and Zero Coupon NCDs to be written back.

22.3 As the recovery / realisation of these assets directly related to redemption of zeo coupon NCEs, the Company has offset zero coupon NCDs with

below mentionad assets in balance sheet presemation.
{% in Mitlions}

Particulars ~ 31March2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Zero Coupon NCDs T 220.00 220.00 220.00
Trade Receivalics {40.14) (40.30) (40.41}
Indirect Tax Receverable (GST) {¥2.40) (72.40) {72.40)

Deferred Tax fusit: (107.18) == —R6219) (10719

Totat L - uzpf\ﬁm B -

o




Ratnatris Pharmacouticals Private Limitad
{Formeriy known o3 Hatacomani Heglthcare Private Limited)
Notes To The Financi1 St tements for the year ended 21 March 2024

) N o o {% in Millions)
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 T April 2022
23 Pravisions:
Non-currant
Provision For Emzloyee Benefits
Post-Retiromnit fenafits (Refer note 41) R 4.26 6.20
Leave Benaiits  Refer note 41) 1.99 1.70 1.72
Total — 5.90 6.06 7.92
Current
Provision For Emaloyee Benafits
Post-Retiramont Benefits [Refer note 41) 1.23 0.74 061
Leave Benefits (Refer note 41) 0.97 0.47 0.53
2.20 £.21 1.13

Total
*As a0 1 Apnl D007t includes the % 2.50 tiiliions of additional liability based on the approvec'"t".orn;:lramise and Arrangement Scheme by National
Company Lav - ciiagi ("NCLT") The samo ias Boen written back during the FY 2022-23.

23.1 Provision for Ersloyue Benefits
The provision far £npioyee Benefits includas Annual Leave and vestad long service leave entilicments accrued and compensation claims made by

amployees. For cthier disclosures of Post Retirement Benefit Plans, refer note 41.

24 Trade Payablos:
{Unsecured, Carion ar amortised cost, excopt@therwise stated)
Dues of Micro Faie prises and Small Enterprises 155.45 91.78 195.97
Dues of Crediters ooher than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 214.75 89.70 118.63
370,20 181.48 314.60
* Refer note 42 - Finzncial Instruments - Fair Value Measurement & Financial Risk Management o
24,1 These amounts esent liabilities for Goods and Services provided to the Company prior to the end of Financial Year which are unpaid. Trade and

miesented as Current Labilitizs unless payment is not due within 12 months after the Reporting Period, They are recognised
widue and subsequantly measured at amaortised cost using the Effective Interost Method.

Other Payables ar
initfally at their £

24.2 Pavable to Reds co exstesingluded shove, [Reder nare 44) o 5,22 0.26 52.54
24.3 Trade Payabies ageing schedule for the year ended as on 31 March 2024, 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2022:
S S e m S P ) [T in Millions)
Outstanding for following poriods from due date of payment
Asat 31 March 2024 Unhifled Not Due Lass than More than Total
1-2Years 2- 3 Years
. L a year 3 Years
Undisputed e
- MSME - 60,60 70.36 15.35 - Q.14 155.45
-Others £.23 133.83 70.00 33 - 138 214.75
Total 623 203.43 140,36 18.66 - 1.52 370.20
- o {% in Millions)
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
As at 31 March 2023 Unbihad Not Due Less than More than Total
1-2Years 2-3 Years
SR a year 3 Years
Undisputed tques
- MSME 08,14 23,50 0.14 - 91.78
- Others i 433 33,09 50.36 o 0.66 1.26 89.70
Totel 433 101.23 73.86 - 080 1.26 181.48
e _— I o {Z in Millions)
Qutstanding for following perinds from due date of payment
Asat 1 April 2072 Unbilled Not Due Less than 1-2Years 2.3 Years More than Tota!
o a year 3 Years
Undisputed ducs
- MSME - 15185 43 98 014 - - 195.97
-Others _A79 8208 32.39 0.66 - 1.26 118.63
Total 179 233388 0.80 - 1.26 314.60




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
{Formerly known s Rotnmani Heglthcare Private Litnited)
Notes To The Financial $t.atements for the year ended 21 March 2024

24 Trade Payables {Cont..):

24.4 Disclosures requirced by the M.icra, $mal! and Medium Enterprises Development [MSMED] Act, 2006 are as under :
(% in Mitlians})

barticutars “Tasat As at As at
31 Narch 2024 31 March 2023 1 Aprif 2022
{a) [i} The Princinal amount remaining unpaid at the end of the year 155.45 91.78 195,87

[[i) Intercst duc on Principal remaining unpaid at the end of the year - - -
(b} {i) The delayed payments of Principa! amount paid beyond the appointed date - - -
during the year
{i} Interest actually paid under Section 16 of the MSMED Act - - -
{c) MNormal interest due and payable during the year, for all the delayed payments, as - - -
per the agreed terms
{d} Total Interast accrued during the year and remaining unpaid - - -
{e) The ampunt of further Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding - - -
years, until such date when the Interest dues above are actualiy paid to the Small
enterprise, [ the purpose of disallaxence of a deductible expenditure under
Section 23 of Lo MSMED Act
identification of Mi:zro and Small Enterprises is basis the intimation received from vendors. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

25 Other Financial Lizoilities:

Current
Intoerast acciucd -t not due on Boirowings 0.92 0.46 0.18
Creditors for Cap La! Goods 7.40 8.77 3.56
Payables for 1, uyee Benefits 15.97 12.81 9.05
Total o 24.29 22.04 12.79

* Refer note 42 - Finuncial Instruments - Fair Yelue Measurement & Financial Risk Management

26 Other Liabilities:

Current
Advance from Cutlomers 5.73 5.04 27.96
Payables to Suitoary and Other Authoriting 5.67 17.07 5.22
Total 11.4¢ 22,11 33.18
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Ratnatris Pharmaccuticals Private Limited
{Formerly known os Rotnamani Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes ¥o The Financial Statements for the year cnded 31 March 2024

Particulars

(% in Millions)

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

27 Revenue from Qperations:

{a] Revenue from Contract with Custometrs
Rovenue lrom Sale of Products
woverol from Services
Roeverur from Sale of Power gerna awed from Windmills

{b} Other Qperating Income:
lscorne from Product Registration Dassiers
Export Benefits
Sale of Scrap
Others

Tatal

27.1 Reconciliation of Revenue from Operations with the Contracted Price @

Contiacled Price
Adjustanents

Discounts

Sales Return
Revence from Contract with Customars
Adil: Other Operating Income
Rewanui frorm Operations

27.2 Reven.i: Doaaggregation by Goopraphy @

within s
Oulside ini a
Total

27.3 Set av! Lebaw is the amount of Reseiun Recognised from:

Amounts insluded in Cantract tiakilib 2s at the beginning of the year

27.4 Timing of Revenue Recognition
3oods transferred at a point in time
Services fransferred over time

Total

27.5 Contract Liabilitles

The Company records a Contract isbility when cash paymants are received or due in arlvance of its performance,

Advance fram customers (Refer nota 18]
Total

27.6 Information zbout Major Customers

8953.59 991.78
51.34 72.70
4.29 4.41
1,009.22 1,068.80
18.94 79.83
6.86 5.90
3.99 5.46
3.56 4,25
33.35 95.44
1,042.57 1,164,33
1,018.62 1,109.99
{0.08) -
{9.32) (41.10)
1,009.22 1,063.89
33,35 85.44
1,042.57 1,164.33
631.06 786.21
411,51 378.12
1,042.57 1,164.33
5.81 12.91
953.59 991.78
55.63 77.11
1,009,22 1,068.89
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
5.73 5.04
5.73 5.04

Three Sxternai customers for the years ended 31 March 2024 and Two Customers for the year ened 31 March 2023 represents 10%

or mave of e Company's wotal revanue.




Ratnatris Pharmaccuticals Private Limited
{Farmerly known os Batnomansd Healthcare Private Limited)
Notes Ta The rinancial Statements for the yoar ended 31 March 2024

P i e _ {% in Millions)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
28 Other income:

Interest income

- Fram Fixced Deposits 0.14 0.23
- ¥rom Loans To Related Parties 0.24 0.13
- From Othors 0.3%5 0.51
Met Forzign Exchange Gain 5.28 8.18
Renlal mcome - 0.69
Profit Cn Sale Of Property, Flant & Sguipment {Net) - 0.18
fnsurance Claims - 17.18
Provisions Mo Longer Required Written Back 0.01 0.01
Other Nan-Operating Income 2.42 1.35
Total 8.54 28.46
29 Cost ol Mawerials Consumied:
Invernitamy i Lo beginning of the yvear 85.86 160.56
Add: Furchoses 676.72 629.31
Less: Invaniory at the end of the yaar 86.01 85.86
Totat 676.57 704.01
30 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and Stock-In-Trade:
Opening inveniory :
Finizhed Goods 32.73 6.97
Work-In -Progress 671 11.02
Svok-ln - Trade - -
3944 17.99
Less : Closing imventory .
Finished Goods 17.28 3273
Waork-In-Prograss 5052 671
Stook-le-Toade - -
67.80 39.44
Changas in Inventory {28.36) {21.45)
31 Employee Benefits Expense:
Salaries and Wages 157.54 121.84
Contribution ta Provident and Other Funds 9.97 7.14
Staff Welfare Expenses 5.78 6.84
Total 173.29 135.32
32  Finance Cons:
INteresi expnses on;
- Borrowings S2.02 46.09
-{eases 1.22 1.32
- Others 001 -
Unwinding of lransaction Costs incurred on Borrowings 0.17 0.07
Other Borrowing Cost 151 0.9
Total - 55.03 48.39
33 Depreciating and Amortisation E.paise:
Depreciaticn of Property, Plant & Eyuipment 49,36 47.52
Depreciation on Right-Of-Uso assete 1.80 1.80
Armortisation of Intangible Assets 7.16 4.28
58.82 53.60

Total




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
{Formerty known as Ratnamani Healtheare Private Limited)
Notes To The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

% in Millions)

particulars Year ended Year endad
o — A March 2024 31 March 2023
34 Other Expenses:
Consumption of Stores and Spares 237 1.04
Power & Fuz! 71.78 63.87
Paymont to Labourers and Other Processing Charges 64.31 51.28
Laboratory ixpenses 9.61 9.46
fepairs ano dMaintenance
Buildie; 3.92 2.79
hachinary 16.35 16.44
Vehiches 1.23 0.87
- Others 4.38 4.00
Rent 012 0.22
Rates, Taxzs and Fees 0.66 361
Insurance 5.57 2.84
Travailing und Conveyancs 6.54 6.89
Communicalion Costs 1.99 1.63
Printing ar: Lignery 1.62 1.47
Legal ard Froizssional Exponsos 15.02 12.70
Auditors Roruaeration (Reder details below) 0.20 0.16
Donatians Q.50 .17
Product J:velopment Expanses 5.29 0.73
Loss an Sate / Disposal of Property, 2lant & Equiprnent 0.40 -
Bad Debts / Advances / Sundry Balance Write off .55 -
Comumissicn on Sales 0.06 0.5
Logistics & xisiribution Exponses 16.78 32.46
Semirae, E-hitstion and Conferoncs Exus 5.42 1.69
Other warlecling Expenses 2.57 9.43
Miscaliorecur FXpanses 9.52 : 7.50
Total 246.87 237.30
35 Research sind Development Fxpensas:
Degreciatinn and Amortisation inciudes T 23.36 millions [previous year ¥ 23.14 millions) pertaining to Property, Plant and
Equiprnents and Other Intangille nssets used for Research and Development purposes.
36  Earnings Fel Share:
Particulars Units Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Met prafit for the year [2) {% in Millions} {119.59) {27.77)
Weighred average number of equity smares for Basic EPS [b] {Nos.} 2,478,916 1,876,636
Basit, FPS {a), 1b] % (48.24) {14.80)
Add: Effect of silutive rights geanoy uidear CCO (till date of conversion)c]* {Nos.} - -
Weighted nea,age numben of egiily 2nares for Diluted EPS [d = b+ ¢] T 2,478,916 1,876,636
Diluted EF7 at/ [d} % {48.24) {14.80)
Nominzi vaiic per gguity share . S 10.00 10.00
* Effect of d.utive rights granted undar Compuisory Convertible Debentures {'CCDY) {till date of conversion) is anti-dilutive in nature.
# During the previus year ended 31 March 2024, the conversion factor of CCD was note available and hence calculation of diluted EPS would be
sarne as bass FRA
37 Auditors Reinuneration: - {Z in Millions)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
N 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
{a) Az Audii Foes o
Stututary Audit Fers 0.13 010
Tax Audit Fees 0.05 0.04
(b)  For Other Services 0.02 0.02
0.20 0.16

Total
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[% in Millions)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

38

39

40

Exceptional items
Exceptional items are those which are considered for separate disclosure in the financial statements considering their size, nature or
incidence. During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has written back T 10.00 Millions provisions relating to diminution in

value of inventories and retirement benefits made based on NCLT order,

Commitments and contingencies:

Commitments;
Estimated amount of contracts remaining unexecuted on capital 1.32 -
account {net of advances} not provided for
1.32 -
Contingent labilities:
Corporate guarantees given to banks against credit facilities availed by related parties 77250 -
{Refer note 44)
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts :
Disputed demand of income tax for which appeals before first appellate authority 158.83
have been preferred AY 2021-22 _
Disputed demand of income tax for which appeals before appellate authority have 46.29 46.29
been preferred AY 2018-19
977.62 46.29

Details of loan given, investment made and guarantge given covered ufs 186 [4) of the Companies Act, 2013:

{a} The details of loans given by the Company to entities controlled by the KMPs:

{% in Millions}

Name of the Company Loan given Maximum Amgount Balance as at
2023-24 2022-23 outstanding during the year 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Ratnagene Lifescience Private Limited - 13.00 10.08 - 10.08
Renosen Pharmaceuticals Private Limited - 5,50 6.54 3.00 6.54

{(b)  The details of guarantees given by the Company to entities controlled by the KMPs:
{% in Millions)

Name of the Company Guarantee given Maxirmum Amount Balance as at

2023-24 2022-23 outstanding during the year 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Ratnagene Lifescience Private Limited 372.50 - 372.50 372.50 -
senores Pharmaceuticals Limited 400.00 - 400.00 400.00 -

{c} There are no loans where either no interest is charged or interest is below the rate specified in section 186 of the Companies

Act, 2013, wherever applicable,
{d) Other than above, the Company has not given any loans or advances in the nature of loan to, guarantee given and investment

made in any of associates or firms / companies in which Directors are interested.
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41.1

Employee iiarefits:
Defined Co.tribution Plan

Contributions are mada to Employae Provident Fund (EPF), Employees State Insurance Scheme {ESIC) and other funds which
covers all regular employees. While both the employees and the Company make predetermined contributions to the
Provident Fund and ESIC and other statutory funds are made only by the Company. The contributions are normally based on a
certain nercentage of the employes’s salary, Amount recagnised as expense in respuct of these defined contribution plans.

Details of smount recognized as expenses during tha year: - {% in Millions}
particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Contribution to Provident Fund 7.96 5.86
Contribution to ESIC and Employecs Deposit Linked Insurance (EDLI) 1.07 1.03
Contribution to Labour Welfare Fund 0.01 0.01
Totai o 9.04 6.90

Definen Baaric Plan
The acouitn lsility on account o retrement benefit plans {in the nature of defined benefits plan) is accounted as per Ind-AS
19 "Ent:loyen fenefits”

General dasaription of the plan

The Company operates a defincg benefit plan {the gratuity plan} covering eligible employees, which provides a lump sum
payment to vosted employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the
respeciiie employees basic salary and the tenure of employment.

Intergst tigh:

A fall i Lhe dizcount rate which iy fakeo to the Government Security Rate will fncrease the present value of the tiability
requiring highor pravision. A falt in the discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on
the duration of asset,

Investimoent rislc

The presen. vifue of the detined bherefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to
market vieids ot the eng of Lhe regorling year on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will
create pian deicit.

Longevivy risk.
Since tha benofits under the plas s rot payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any
longevity risk.

Salary risk:
The present vaiue of the defineo boaefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an

tncrease in the salary of the merike-s more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.
{X in Millions)

Particuiig As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
{a) Recenciliation of opening and cfosing balances of the present value of the
defined henefit obligation :
Qbligaticns at the beginning of the year 5.10 4,30
Currgnt Service Cost 1.41 1.45
lnterost Cost Q.37 0.30
Actuariai {Gain) f Losses {0.93) {0.30)
Benells paid directly by the viaployer {0.81) {0.65)
OLifigsiiens at the end of e year 5.14 5.10
{b} Amountrecognized in Balance Sheet
Liakility a1 the end of the pariod 5.14 5.10
Net Amount recognized in 8alance Sheet 5.14 5.10
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41  Employ:e Derofits: (cont..):

Particulars

{% in Millions)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

{c} Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year :

{e

{f)

g

Current Service Cost 141 1.45
Mot interest on net defined benofit liability 0.37 0.30
Net G: aiaity Cost 1.78 1.75

Exenses cecognized in oti.e” Co.aprehensive Income for the year :

Acruzrial {Gains)/ gsses - Do to Change in Demographic Assumptions {0.61} (0.72)
Actuarial {Gains)/l.osses - Due to Change in financial assumptions 0.02 {0.08}
Actuarial {Gains)/Losses - Bug to experience adjustments {0.34) 0.51
Total {0.93) {0.30)
Assuraptions :

Drcount rate® 7.14% 7.31%
Salary isonlation rate 8.00% 8.00%
hartn by late Indian Assurzd Lives Mortality 2012-14

{Urban).

* The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the balance sheet
date for the estimated term of the obligations.

Seasitivity Analysis for eacn significant actuarial assumption :

The sigrelicant actugrial assumations for the determination of the defined benefit obligations are discount rate and
[T IA abary insvease, T onsilivity analysis below have been determinad based on reasonably possible changes of
Pher ru e b assdisption. ¢ coening at the end of the reporting perioad, whiic holding all other assumptions constant.

{% in Millions)

Partic. dars As at As at
L I 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Imzact of increase in discount rate by 1 % {0.13) {0.20)
lmpact of decreasea ir disceuni rate by 1 % 0.14 0.22
impac: ol increaso in salary cazalationrate by 1 % .14 0.22
Irmact of decrease insalay vscalation rate by 1% {0.13) {0.20)
Iminact of increase in employee wenover rate by 1 % {0.05) {0.05)
Impact of decrease in employee turnover rate by 1% L 0.05 0.05

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligations as it 5 unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the

assumptions may bo correlataed.

Furthermore, in gresenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligations has been
caleulated using the projec:ed unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in
catcatating the defined beraiin ehlization liability recognised in the kalance shcet.

M turity profile :

Projected benefits payable i future years from the date of reporting: {% in Millions)
_ As at As at

Undiscounted values 31 March 2024 31 March 2024
1a f-::llo»\-ing year o - 1.23 0.74
2nd following year 0.90 0.73
3rd following year 0.82 0.71
Al fellowing year Q.77 0.68
5th following year .69 .74
Sum of Years & To 10 1.58 2.20
Sum of Years 11 and above 0.43 1,53
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42  Financial Instruments:

42.1 Accounting Classification and Fair Valu.s;
Carrying amaunts and Fair values of finaneiz! Assets and Financial Liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy, are prasented

below,
Asat31March202¢ B {Zin Millions}
e . Carrying Value _ Fair Value
Particulars AtCost  AtFVTPL Am;;:lsed Total | Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
|
Financial Assnts r . . o | -
irvestments | 0.7 - 3 0.07 - - : -
Trade Receivibles ; - - 362.65 362,65 - - 362.65 362.65
Cash and Cash Ecuivalents - - 0.34 .34 - - 0.34 034
Other Bank Bi.lances ! - - 158 1.58 - - 1.58 1.58
Loans - - 3.00 3.00 | - - 3.00 3.00
Gthers ! - - 8.94 g4 | - - 8.94 8.94
Total Financial Assets ; o7 - 376,51 376.58 | - - 376.51 376.51
Financial Liabilities i
Borrowings - 806.23 806.23 5 - 806.23 806.23
Lease Liabiity : - - 13.24 13.24 | - - 13.24 13.24
Trade Payabbe ! - - 370,20 370.20 ! - - 370.20 370.20
Others b - 24.29 24.29 . - - 24.29 24,29
Total Financicl Linhiiclias . 1,213.96 1,213.96 [ - 1,213.96 1,213.96
As at 31 March 2023 . ] X in Millions)
| Carrying Value _ Fair Value
Parficulars At Cost At FVTPL Amcoor:;sed Total : Leval 1 Levai 2 Level 3 Total
|
Financial Assels ..I..___“ T :
Inwestments [ Xy - - 0.07 | - - - -
Trqde Reciivibie: ' - 23423 23423 I - - 234.23 234,23
Cash and Caso Equinvaneinls - 034 .24 - 034 0.34
Other Bank Balance: - 1.58 1.58 | - - 1.58 1.58
Loans i' - 16.62 1662 - - 16.62 16.62
Others L R - 24.78 24.78 | - : 2478 24.78
Total Financial Assers r B0 - 277.55 277.62 | - - 277.55 277.55
Financial Liabilities I '
Borrowings - 886,24 836.24 : ) . 886.24 886.24
Lease Liability - 14.20 14,20 1 - 14,20 14.20
Trade Payatic : - 181.48 18148 : - - 181.48 181.48
Others P 22,04 204 - - 22,04 22,04
Total Financiaf Liubilities [ - - 1,103.96  2,103.96 - - 1,103.96  1,103.96
As at 1 April 2022 B - . [% in Miltions)
i i Carrylng Value Fair Valua
Perticulars | AtCost  AtFVTRL Am;;;sed Total Level 1 Levei 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets , o |
Investmeants ! NS - - 0.06 | - - - -
Trade Recpivililug I - - 249.16 24916 | - - 248,16 243,16
Cash and Cash Equivaienrts | - 11.96 11.96 i - - 11.96 11.96
Other Bank baionces | - 5.02 502 - 5.02 .02
Loans ' - - - . - - - -
Others L_____;____ N - 8.60 8.60 - - 8,60 8.60
Total Financial Assets | 006 - 274.74 27480 - - 274.74 274.74
Financial Liabifities - |
Borrowings - 705.69 705.69 - - 705.68 705,69
Lease Liability : - 15.05 15.05 ¢ - 15,05 15.05
Trade Payabl: i : - 314,60 314,60 - - - 314 60 314.60
Others ; N - 12.79 1279 . - : 12.79 12.79

Total Financicl Lishiliies |~ - 1,048.13  1,04813 : - 1,0a8.13 _ 1,048.13
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a2

(i}

{ii)

{iii}

42.2

(a)

fai}

Financial Instrumants (cont..):

Financial Instrument measured at Amortisod Cost:

The carrying smouri of finaacial sssete and linancial liabilities measured at amartised cost in the financial statements are reasonable
approximaticn ol thedr fair valves since the company does not anticipate that the carrving amounts would be significantly different from the
values that would eventually be recaived or seilled,

Levels 1,2 and 3
Level 1:itinciudes Investment in eouity shares and mutual fund that has a quoted price and which are actively traded on the stock exchanges. It

is been valued using the closing price a5 4l whe reporting period on the stock exchanges.

Level 2: The loir value of financial instrumionts that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observabic market dota and icly as litkle as possible on entity-specific estimates, If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are obse.vable, tho instromens s included inlevel 2.

Level 3: If one ar mare of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.
There have been no ransfers betweoen Levo! 1 and Level 2 during the vears.

Financial Risk Manz sement:

The Company’s actiligs are cxpoued o varioty of financial risks, These risks include market risk {including foreign exchange risk and interest
rate risks], crzadi risay and dguitity skl Tno Company’s overall risk management pragram cecks to minimize potential adverse effects on the
fingncial performancs: of the Comocny iboough catablished policies and processes which ar 'sid down to ascertain the extent of risks, setting
appropriate it conatrols, cordonieus o' toring and its compliance,

Market Risk ;
Market risk rofers to the possibility thar changes in the market rates may have impact on the Company’s profits or the vatue of its holding of

financial instrumants. The Company is exposed to market risks on account of foreign exchange rates and interest rates.

Foreign Currency Excirange Rata Risk

shoaraes trom ats foreign currency transactions. The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have
juity, where any transaction referencas mo-e than one currency ar where assets/liabilities are
Al currency of the Company,

The Company s tereipn corroroy

potential impatan we oo B0 B T

denominals: oo cungy oo vl e

The Company = reverue is patially corres i farcign currency and major part of the costs are in Indian Rupees, any movement in currency rates
waruld have impact on the Compuny’s prosrmance. Consequently, the overall objective of the foreign currency risk management is to minimize
the short term currericy impact on its revesue and cash-flow in order ta improve the predictability of tha financial performance.

The following table sots farth infcrmation rolating to forgign currency exposure from non-dei ivative financial instruments:

AR R ssa {Z in Millions)
. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 Aprif 2022
Particulars -
) UsD £ Usn % usD T
Assets
Trade Receivatsles 2.06 171.45 148 12267 1.40 106.22
Net Assets 2.06 171.45 1.49 122.67 1.40 106.22

Profit ar loss is sensitive to higher / lower gain / loss on foreign currency denominated monatary assets and liabilities as a rasult of change in
fluctuation in forrigi: currency exchang: ratz. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of fareign currency denominated monetary assets
and fiabilities to a reasonably possibic ciwngue in foreign currency exchange rates. The risk cstimates provided assume a paraliel shift of 2%
change in excrangs - ate. This cuoulation 259 asswmes that the change occurs at the batance snoet date and has been calculated based on risk
exposures ou standir ? as at thay datn, oo noviod end balances are not necessarily representlive of the average cutstanding during the period.

Impact on Predit / (Loss) AfterTax o {% in Millions)
Particulars i o 31 March 2024 _ 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Change in exchange rate by +2% 2.48 1.77 1.53

Change in exchange rate by -2% ) (2,48) B {1.77) {1.53)
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Financia! Instruments {cont..).

{a2} Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is tho risk that the fair valux or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Company's seeks o mitigate -uch risk by maintaining an adequate proportion of flipating and fixed interest rate borrowings. The
Company's berrowings are at fixcd rate 72.46%, 76.35% and 83.89% as at 31 March 2024, 31 March 2023 and as at 1 Apri! 2022 respectively.
Summary of financial assets and financial izbilitics has been provided below:

Exposure to Interest Rate Risk
The interest rite profile of the Campany's intarest - bearing financial instrument as reported to management is as follows:

e - " (% in Millions)
. As at As at As at
Particulars i
o e 31March2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Fixed-Rate Instruments
Financial fssots 5.00 18.25 5.17
Financial Liakilitie s 592.25 676.62 591.98
Varizhle-Rate Instrumeants
Financial Liab:litics 213.88 209.62 113.71

Interest Rate Sensitivity

Profit or loss is seastive to kiphec/low s ntorest expense from borrowings as a2 resull of change in interest rates. The following table
demonstrates the s inancial instruments to a reasonably possible change in interest rates. The risk estimates provided
assume a paralled shet of 100 Y soanterest rale across all yield curves. This calcusation also assumes that the change occurs at the
balance sheat dae g has becn ¢ Lzsed on risk exposures outstanding as al Lhat date. The period end balances are not necessarily
representative of the avergge debt autstanging dudng the period.

Lhan

Impact on Prafit / {ioss) After Tax L L {% in Millions)
Particulars o - 31 March 2024 - 31 Marck 2023 1 Aprll 2022
Increase in 100 basis points {1.54) {1.51} {0.82)
Decrease in 100 bass poines 134 1.5t 0.82
Credit Risk :

Credit risl is ins ol finaniaal loss arisiep o, counterparty failure to repay or service debt :ccording to the contractual terms or obligations.
Credit risk encomipe-ses of toth, ks oireg . sk of default and the risk of deterioration of croditwerthiness as well as concentration of risks,
Financial insteumont. that are subeol Lo canwertrations of credit risk materially consists of trade receivables, loans, balances with bank and

bank deposits,

All trade reccivables are subjoct to credil sisk exposure. The Company’s exposure to crodit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and country, In which the
customer operates, wlso has an influeace oo credit risk assessment. Credit risk is managed through established policies, controls relating to
credit approvals o no proceduras for cantinuaosiy monitoring the ereditwerthiness of customor s to which the Company grants credit terms In the
normal course o, guaness, There ace 2 cusioraors ameounting te T 128.90 Millions, 3 custormu s amounting to % 125.32 Millions and 4 customers
amaounting 1o ¥ Lad.08 Milligns contributas Lo omore than 10 % of outstanding accounts receivable as at 31 March 2024, 31 March 2023 and 1
April 2022 respactivily,

Exposure to Credit Risk

The carrying valuz of financiat assets represents the maximum credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk was < 443.43 Millions,  333.79
Millions and 2 31500 Miltions as al 2L March 2024, 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2022 respectively, being the total carrying value of trade
receivables, balanices with bank, kane dapaosiis, loans and ather financial assets.

In respect of financid guarantees proviced by vhe Company to banks/financial institutions. the maximum exposure which the Company is
exposed to 15 the mecimum amount which the Company would have to pay if the guarantec it called upon. Basod on the expactation at the end
icors that it is more likely than not that such an amaunt will not be payable under the guarantees

of the reparting period, the Company cons
provided,
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{c]

43

Liquidity Risk :

Liquidity risic refers wo the risk thal the Camimany wilt encounter difficulty in meeting the obtizations associated with its financial liabilities that
are settled by delivoling cash or gnothor finzncial asset. The objective of liquidity risk managerment is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure
that funds are awailihle for vse as por requirements, The Campany generates cash flows from operations to meet its financial obligations,
maintaing adeguate liquid assets in the form of cash & cash equivalents and has undrawn zhort term line of credits from banks to ensure
necessary liguidity,

Contractual maturities of sigrificant financial liakilities are as below:

Asat31March2024 (% in Millions)
Particutars Due in Duein Due in Due after Yotal
YearOtaol Yearlto2 Year2to5 Year 5

Borrowings* 175,24 13.81 39.04 578.14 807.33
Lease Liakilitios 1.18 1.42 5.98 4.66 13.24
Trade Payables 370.20 - - 370.20
ther Financial Liabiities 24.29 - z - 24.29
Total 57101 1523 45.02 583.80 1,215.06
As at 31 March 2023 R N B (% in Milligns)
Particulars Due in Due in Due in Due after Total

. e E YearOtoi VYearlto2 YearZtob Year 5
Borrowings* ' 158.66 12,98 31.85 478.57 682.06
Lease Liabilitias 0.96 1.18 5.00 7.06 14.20
Trade Payabui: 181.48 - - 181.48
Other Financial Linkitries 22.04 = - - 22.04
Total 363.14 1416 26.85 485.63 899.78
AsatlApgj202z {X in Millions}
Particuiars Duein Due in Due in Due after Total

. _ . Year0tol Yeerlto2 Yearlto§ Yaar 5
Borrowings” ' £9.86 9.03 15.13 522,72 636,74
Leasa Liabilities 077 0.96 4,30 9.02 15.05
Trade Payaklos 314.60 - . - 314.60
Other Financial Liabilic e 12.79 - - - 12.79
Total 418.02 999 19.43 531.74 979.18

*Excluding amortised cost adjustment and compulsory convertible debentures as it will not create any liquidity risk for the Company.

Capital Managecmeant
The Company’= cap=ai manasemant s intenced to create valua for shareholders by facilitat'ng the achievement of long-term and short-term

goals of the Cornpany.

ital required on the basis of annual business plan coupled with long-term and short term strategic
£ needs are met through equity, cash generated (rom operations, iong-term and short-term bank

The Company deer ines the amount of
investment and cxpansion glans, The fund
barrowings and issus of non-convertiblo debt securities,

The Company maonitors the capital streciuse on the basis of net debt to equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfollo of the
Cornpany. Mat debt neludes inlerest koariee borrowings including lease liabilities less cask and cash equivalents, other bank balances {including
noen-current carmachod balonoes),

The table below surrnarises the capital, net 3 bt and net debt to equity ratio of the Company.
(% in MiHlions)

Particulars As at As at Asat
= s 31-Mar-24  31-Mar-23  0l1-Apr-22

Total Equity {Incl. compulsory convertible ocebt securities} 92.77 211.69 103.25
Adjusted Net Equity (A} 92.77 211.69 103.25
Gross Debt (Excl. compulsory conventiole Jdo bt securities) £19.47 634.95 651.24
Less: Cash and Cash Squivalents (0.24) {0.34} {11.96}
Less: Bank Balances Ulher than Cash and Cosh Equivalents {2.00) {1.63) {5.17}
Adjusted Net Deot (i} 817.13 692.98 634.11
Met Debt to Equity iatio {8 f A} 8.81 3.27 6.14
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Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(Formerly known as Retnamani Heolfthcare Privote Limited)
Notes To The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

45 Segment Information:
The chief operational decision maker {CODM) monitors the operating rasults of its Business segment separately for the purpose of

making decision about resource sllocation and performance assessment. Segment perforimance is evaluated based on profit or loss and
is measured consistaatly with picfit or loss in the financial statements. Operating segment have been identified on the basis of nature
of products and othi: guantitetive criteria specified in the Ind AS 108, Pharmaceuticats business is identified as single operating
segment for the purpose of making decision on allocation of resources and assessing its poiformance.

46 On 20 September 2022, National Company taw Tribunal {"NCLT"} has approved the scheme of Compromise and Arrangement between
the Company and equity shareholders and class of unsecured creditors of the Comapany under section 230 to 232 of Companies Act,
2013, Rased on the ordar received from NCLT, the Company has given following effects in the books of accounts.

{i) The Company has written off secumulated lossess of the Company, reduction in equity share capital and securities premium,
impairment @ Property, piant and equipment and written down value of Invenlories, written off misc. deposits, additional
provisions for cmployee bencfits, writien back of unsecured loans. This has resulted in to T 6.81 Millions of capital reserve.

Particulars s T in Millions
Reduction of Accumulated lasses - 431.22
Impairment of Property, Flant & Equipment - 106.89
Written Down ¥oive in Invantoties - 7.50
additional Pre-isicn for Erosizyee Benefits - 2.50
Written Off fvisc. depasis - 1.24
Reduction of Siave Capital ard Securities Premium 19.75
Written Back Unsocured Lowrs 536.37
Total 6.81

{i) The Company has issued Zuro Coupon Redsemable Nen-Convertible Debenures amounting to X 220 Millions against the partial
claim of unsecuras lenders of the Company with conditions attached to it. (Refer note 22.2)

{iii) The Company i3 issued - 10 Fy frosh 755,636 equity shares at premium of 2 100 each amouting to % 28.23 Millians.
All of the above LI -ci hay e fuen on appeinted date 1 April 2021,

47 Additional Regulal.ry information pursuantlo the requirement in Division !l of schedule iil to the Companies Act, 2013::

{i) The Company does ot have any Benami property, where any proceeding has beeq inittated or pending against the Company for
holding any Benami property.

{ii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

fiii) The Company has riot traded or inwested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the tinancial year.

{iv} The Company has nat advanezd or loaned or invested funds to any other persenis) or entitylis), including foreign entities
{Intermadiaries) with the underslanding that the Intermediary shati: {a) directly or indiiectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any maninar whatseever by or an behalf of the company {Ultimate Bengficiarius) or (k) provide any guarantee, security or
the like to or on behali of the Uhivate Seneficiarics.

{v) The Company has nut received any fund fram any person{s} or entity(is), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding {whather recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: [a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified i any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any
guarantee, security o: the fike on hehalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries.

{vi} The Company dogr nut have am wransschion which s not recorded in the baoks of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in € Lx assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant
provisions of the Irnuome Tax Act 1861,

{vil} The Company is net seclared a3 wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution iar Jefined under the Companies Act, 2013} or
consortium thereof or ather lender in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

{viii} The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets) during the year.

{ix} The Company doesn't have any co-uwned properties or the properties {including properties for which the jease agreement executed
and disclosed as ‘Righi-of-Use Assets’ in financial statements} for which title deed are held by the others, [except as mentioned note 5
and 8)

{x} The Company has not Jranted any Loans or Advances in the nature of laans to promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties {as
defined under Comnan'es Act, 2:21.3], either sevorally or jointly with any other person {cacept disclosed in note 40),

{xi} The Campany has L su. the Do qdngs fram the banks for its in rpose during the financial year.

{xii} The Company did rol nave ary s ranacticn with companieyStheakidvf e ection 2458 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 aof
Cornpanies Act, 1976 during the currant and previous fingfegiyear,




Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Lirmited
{Formerly known gs Ratngmani Heafthcare Privati Limited)
Notes To The Financial Statemants far the year ended 31 March 2024

48 Ratio Analysis:

Sr. Year ended ¥ amr cnded

fasi Variance Reasans
Na. s 31March 2024 31March2023 "0 eas

{a) Current Ratio {In times) @ Curreat Assets / Curreni Liabilities 1.10 0.82 33.9% Refer note (i}

{b} Debt Equity ratio {tn timas) : Total Rebt / Shareholder's Equity B.69 142.84 -93.9% Refer note (i)

Total Debt: Non-Current Borrowings | Current Borrowings &
Shareholder's Equity: Fquity Shesre Tanital + Other Equity

(¢} Debt Service Coverage Rava {ln timas) © Prodt After [ax + Deferred - 0.68 1.03  -166.1% Rafer note (i)
Tax + Depreciation and Amortisstion « Interast on debt and lease /
Interest gn debt ard ivase + Frincipal repayments of Leng term debt
including lease paymaent

(d] Return an Eguity Rsec (in %) o profitahor Taes [ Average -241.67% ~148.02% 73.8% Refer note {ii}
Shareholder's Equi
(e} Inventary Turnowor (10 timeas]: e from Sale of Froducts / 6.83 (.69 2.1% M.A
Average Inventicrio:.,
{f} Debtors Turnover ;in times): fivenus fren contrict with 338 4.42 -23.5% NA.
Custorners f Average Trade Receivablos
{g} Trade Payables Turnover (In tivies): Revenue fram sale of products 3.46 4.00 -13.5% WAL
/ Average Trade Pavaclas
th} MNet Capital Turngeer dation N SelngWaking Capiral 16.82 - 927  -2B1.5% Refer note {ii)}
il fet Frofit fan {0 2 Met Froiadset “ales -12.54% 2.E0% 347.9%  lefer note {il)
{j) Return on Capitai tmyioyed (1o % CBIT/Capital fmployed -12.15% 1.44% -045.6% Refer note {ii)
{k} Return on Investment {in %): Interest lncoma / Avorage loans & £.19% 4.61% 34.3% Refer note {iv)
Time Deposits
— e e+ e, A

fi) During the year, rrsiviy € 205,27 i-lli91s wuorth of Campulsory Convertible Debentures has heci: cosvuerted into Equity shares with premium.

{ii} During the vear, the Cempany Han nogatn o BT et before Interest and taxes) and compara: to orovious year l0ss also increased. This has turned all

profitability ratio o rogative cone.
{iii} Previous year, as on reporting date the working capital {Current assets - current liability) was negativz and in current year it becomes positive.

{iv} Loan given in the lase quarter of the previous year and because of the seme return on investment has come tower for previous year,




Ratnatris Pharmaceutical: Private Lindted
{Formerly known os Ratnomani Healtheore Private Lintited)
Notes To The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

49 These financial statemants were authorised for issuance by the Company's Board of Directors on 27 May 2024.

50 The Indian Parliament has appioved the Code on Sacial Security, 2020 {‘Code’} which may impact the contributions made by the
Company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Company will evaluate the impact once the corresponding rules are notified and
will give appropriate »ffect in tae Financial siatements in the period in which the Code becomas effective and the ralated rules are
notified.

81 Events occurring afler the Balar.ce Sheet Date
The Company evaluates events and transactions that occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to approval of the financial
statements to detormine the necessity for recognition andfor reporting of any of these events and transactions in the financial
statements. As of 24 iay 2024, there are no subsequent events to be recognized or reportad,

In Terms Of Our Report Aluiched For and Behalf of Board of Directors of

For Rajesh 1. Shah & Assoifates Ratnatris Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

Chartered Accourntonts {Formerly known os fetnomani Heolthcare Private Limited)
Firm’s Registration MNo: 108404V CIN : U24230G120051C047394
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